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Definitions

E

In this Annual Report, unless the context otherwise requires,
the following expressions shall have the following meanings.

“B2B”
[ B2B |

“B2C”
[ B2C ]

“Board”
[Exg]

“CG Code”
[ xEIaT A

“Companies Ordinance”

INCIRESEN

“Company” or “the
Company”

YNGR

“Director(s)”

[E %]

(ESEY
[RE - -1HekEh]

“Group”
[AR&EE

“Hong Kong” or “HK”
(&8

“Hong Kong dollars” or “HK

dollars” or “HK$”
[ 7t

RAFERA  RXEAZBMEN UTHAER
BNIHE -

business to business
TEHPE

business to customers
SRR

board of Directors

Exw

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

IR AR A 8+ ey X E R T A

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended
and supplemented from time to time
ERENFEE222E( A TGP - RTKEET REFR

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability on 13 June 2000 and, except where the context
otherwise requires, all of its subsidiaries, or where the context refers to the time
before it became the holding company thereof, our Company’s present
subsidiaries

REBEBIZERER AR - R200066 A13BE B REFMA L HER % QA & (B
NESZSBREMNEMBEMNBRARIN (HMXBHEEKBERAF AR RAAQA
I I B A A

the director(s) of the Company

ZN/NTE- =5

environmental, social and governance
RE -HtekeEn

the Company and its subsidiaries
RRARIREWERT]

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of Mainland China
B & R R IT R

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BREEE®
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Definitions (continued)

Bx(E)

“Listing”
[T

“Listing Date”

[ £ B E
“Listing Rules”
[ £ A8 8l

“Macau”

[JRFT]
“Mainland China”
[ A B A i

“Net Proceeds”
[FTi5 318 F 5 |

“020”
[ 020 |

“Oriole International”

R A = B R

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
Mty OB R BT E AR BT

11 May 2018, the date which the Company’s shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to commence on
the Stock Exchange

2018511  RAFIRM MBI MW B ERBRIMFKLEZEH B H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time

BRMARIMBERABES LMHRA  ETREF R

the Macau Special Administrative Region of Mainland China

REDRFIRRIITEE

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this Annual Report,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
REARANE  RAFHEMS  TEEEE RFIREE

the net proceeds from issuance of the Shares in connection with the Listing
wb T E TR {0 B BT 1S SE R R

online to offline

mREHKRT

Oriole Food International Limited (RF| &R MBI AR A F), a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong on 22 March 2017, which is owned as to
51% by Mr. Chu Cho Wing, being the son of Mr. Chu Sun Chi, who is a
shareholder and director of Whole Sun and as to 49% by Ms. Li Sze Mun
Charmaine, the daughter-in-law of Mr. Chu Sun Chi

BANSREmBEERBERLDGF  R2017F3A22BEEEATMA LN BER AT K
HEREE(BEFTORRRESFRNBEEEZF)REFER L (BIRFEREZ
18 4m) 3 Rl ¥ B 51% 5 49%

A

N RABEEBEZERERAR 3
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Definitions (continued)

Bx(E)

“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”

[ &R AR %% RS T
]

“Prospectus”

[HBRER]

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
[AR# ]

“SEQZ
[7& 75 & B & {5k 5 ]

“Share(s)”
(A& 17 ]

“Share Option Scheme”
[ R Rz #5121
“Share Option Schemes”

(% SR RAERT &l

“Shareholders”

[ R

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 22 FfT

“Whole Sun”

the pre-IPO share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on 15
December 2017, details of which are set forth in Note 30 to the financial
statements

RRABR2017F1I2A1B B RHIRAN B R AR EEAIBERET S -
75 ¥ 2% Y 7E30

EACE N

prospectus of the Company dated 30 April 2018
RAFHER2018F4A30R 2 AR EZ

Renminbi, the lawful currency of Mainland China

ARE - FBEEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended and supplemented from time to time
ERENESNEZ S KBGO (B TREFT RER)

ordinary share(s) in the capital of our Company with a par value of HK$0.10 each
RRABRAFEREECA0E TH iR

the share option scheme conditionally approved and adopted by the Company on
15 December 2017, details of which are set forth in Note 30 to the financial
statements

RRRP2017F12 168 B IRHHL/E RER A BB AR 5T & - 715 80 B 15 sk MY
30

the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme
EVANGE S U R e Fa|

holder(s) of Shares

B EH A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMERIMABRAA

Whole Sun Limited (&¥1Z % AR A 7)), formerly known as Tsit Wing Frozen Food
Trading Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 7
January 2013 and was an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company before
29 November 2019

EHE 5 AR A 7 (BT #8Tsit Wing Frozen Food Trading Limited ) * 7220134187
BESEBETMAZHERRAE - 52019511 A29H A 73 A A &) fH # # B 60% 1 &=
EolopE= /NG
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Definitions (continued)

Bx(E)

In this Annual Report, the terms “associate”, “connected
person”, “connected transaction”, “controlling shareholder”,
“subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have the
meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the

context otherwise requires.

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this Annual
Report have been subject to rounding adjustments.
Accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain tables may not
be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding them.

The English translation of Mainland China entities, enterprises,
nationals, facilities, regulations in Chinese or another language
included in this Annual Report is for identification purposes
only. To the extent there is any inconsistency between the
Chinese names of Mainland China entities, enterprises,
nationals, facilities, regulations and their English translations,
the Chinese names shall prevail.

* For identification purpose only

RARERA - BXEZBAEN [BEAL-
[BEAL] [BERS] - [EERERR] - THB
AAIRITEEZRRIFFATH AR £ R
THZEARNRE -

AEFRENETE2RERAOLBEFERHL
MERARBE - Filh - ST RBAMTHE
AHFRLRELAMBFNEMAM -

REFABAPXEIEMBEXRNTEE
B 00X BR REDEHROEXHFEMHR
HRoWMPEER X BR RELER
MAXARERE B EFETMEE  #iN)
R B S -
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mmmm Corporate Information

NEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tat Tong (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith

Ms. Fan Yee Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang

Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong

Mr. Wong Man Fai

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang (Chairman)
Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong
Mr. Wong Man Fai

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Tat Tong

Mr. Wong Man Fai

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Wong Man Fai (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Tat Tong

Mr. Tang Kwai Chang

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith (HKICPA)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith
Ms. Fan Yee Man

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR
BOSC International Company Limited
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Corporate Information (continued)

AR EFR (&)

PRINCIPAL BANKS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE IN BERMUDA
Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Flats F—J, 11th Floor, Block 1

Kwai Tak Industrial Centre

15-33 Kwai Tak Street

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN BERMUDA

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited

Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.twcoffee.com

STOCK CODE
2119

ERERRT
R RTT () BB A A
BERTERAF

BREAMBEE
Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10
Bermuda

BERERAMSERTEERMR

BB

AR

AR

2 1% 4715-335%
HETEHD
FIEIIEF-JE

BEREEFETRE

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited
Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda
ERABLEERLE
BEBLAEZRLEBERAT
BB

2R RNBE1835%

A F A L

5412
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www.twcoffee.com
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Tsit Wing International Holdings
Limited, | hereby present to you the Company’s annual report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

In the past year, the business environment of Hong Kong has
been battered by several months of social movement and the
economic condition of Mainland China has also been hampered
by the U.S.-China trade war as reflected by the lowest rate of
economic growth of Mainland China at 6.2% in 27 years.
Although the food and beverage industry has been hit and
revenue for the Hong Kong restaurant sector decreased by
5.9% in 2019 as compared to the previous year according to
the provisional data from the Census and Statistic Department,
the Group was able to weathered the headwinds and the
overall adjusted profit from continuing operation of the Group
has increased by more than 6%. The Group has also put
diligent effort in closely monitoring its account receivables and
managed to keep its bad debt rate at less than 0.5%.

Seeing the potential growth in the e-commerce market in
Mainland China and as a mean to expand its source of sales,
towards the end of 2019, the Group has made a significant
step into the B2C market and O20 market by establishing “Tsit
Wing Flagship Store (48 5EM#JE)”, an online flagship store, on
Tmall.com that sells coffee and tea products processed by the
Group. The Group has also started preparation work of
launching another online franchisee platform. It intends to invite
its strategic partners and other international brands to trade
and sell their food and beverages products on such platform.
Establishing online sales platforms is seen as a strategic step
that allows the Group to capture the latest e-commerce market
trend and changes in consumer preference. | believe that
online sales platforms can expand the Group’s market share in
the food and beverage industry.
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EF TRAEARBEIANFESZ ANLEE
B M BEAMERGETFRHELBERE
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ERBHEZ - BERNREKILELEE
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETRE®E(E)

In November 2019, the Group has disposed of 60% of the
issued share capital of Whole Sun Limited, a company which
focused on the trading of frozen meat business. The realised
investment allow the Group to deploy more capital and time on
other business opportunities that can entail higher margin. In
this regard, the Group will continue to expand its frozen and
chilled foods business by mainly focusing on (i) meat
processing such as cutting and slicing; and (ii) supply of frozen
processed food to accommodate the caterers’ preferences and
upcoming market trends. The Board believes that these two
target aspects not only have lower credit risks due to the
business nature of the customers and can generate a much
higher margin than the previous raw-meat trading business, but
also allow the Group to leverage on its existing customers
base through offering value-added frozen and chilled food to
consumers who look for speed and convenience in preparing
meals. The Group will continue to explore the related business
opportunities with its strategic partners in order to capture the
growing market demand by providing more varieties of
products and services to the customers.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to strengthen its
foothold in Hong Kong and Macau. As of market penetration
into Mainland China, the Group will devote significant efforts to
bolster its presence in Shanghai and three cities in the Greater
Bay Area, namely Shenzhen, Dongguan and Guangzhou. To
cope with the uncertain economy in Mainland China, the Group
will adhere to the prudent approach while remain dedicated to
maximize returns to shareholders by grasping opportunities for
further business development into first-tier cities that have great
potential. The Group’s expansion in the e-commerce business
as mentioned will also support the Group’s traditional offline
business.

R2019F11H  AKRBEEHEETEZERA
AB0%E BITHR A ZAREERANEEX
B -EBEAREZRAEBSUALEZES R
RREREMEEE MRS FBEX - it -
AEBBEEERESRIKBRAER I
FTEEFROAEMIT (OB R F) + K
HEZENIRR  NOESERBNELFRE
RKmEHL -EF2REFE ZMEBZFEAIRD
BEXFMEEHEMAREEERRE - 78
ENEBUANERNEEES AS ' FRKE

CEESAREREZRRKERRA TS K
FREHEEFANNBEE ZOFMAEBRBEREPRP
Ef - AEEBEERREAESBENENEH
EBke SEEBARTPEMERRERBED
BEICEASRYNTEER -

RERK  AEBBESZEENEE KR
MIRE - ERIT ARBEAMMISH TIE K&
BEEMABERZEEAAR LEBERKER =
@ (BRI - REREM) BT IGHAL - &
RS R B A EENTIRERSE  AEBKE
TERERE ARKERE-—FTHEELEENE
R—BBTHERBEREE  BEINSEER
BRREAZES - HPA L E - KEEANER
NRXBFAEEERETER -

A
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

ETRE®RE(E)

The outbreak of COVID-19 is expected to reverberate across
the economy of Hong Kong and Mainland China, thereby
dampening the business climate and expansion opportunities of
the food and beverage industry. To cope with the situation, the
Group has activated its risk-management measures such as
adopting “Work from Home” policy, conducting inventory review
to ensure sufficient supply and implementing stricter hygiene
standards in the offices and production lines to ensure
compliance with the local regulations, where applicable and
provide a safe and yet pleasant working environment to its
staff. Notwithstanding the surrounding circumstances, the
Group can still maintain stable supply of goods and services to
the customers. The Board will take the lead to plan cautiously
and gear up for the challenges ahead and seize any
opportunities in the coming year to pave the way for the
Group’s long-term growth.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all of the staff
members for their contribution and would also like to extend
my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers and
business partners for their unwavering support, many of whom
have grown along with the Group over the years. | remain
confident in the Group’s prospects and its ability to achieve
exceptional milestones in the coming years.

Wong Tat Tong
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEESNWR DM

Being a leading integrated B2B coffee and black tea solutions
provider in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China providing
one-stop coffee and tea solutions to commercial customers
covering the entire value chain from coffee and tea
procurement, processing and distribution, the Group has also
expanded its foods segment during the past few years. In order
to (i) align with its overall business strategy to develop the food
products business in the B2B market by leveraging on its
existing sales network and to create a synergy with the
Group’s beverage products; and (i) allow the Group to deploy
more capital and time on other business opportunities that can
entail higher margin, the Group disposed of its entire 60%
shareholding interest in one of its subsidiaries, Whole Sun, to a
minority shareholder of that company at a consideration of
HK$27.8 million in November 2019. Whole Sun is engaged in
trading of frozen meat in Hong Kong and the frozen meat
business represented a major line of the Group’s business.
Following the completion of the disposal, Whole Sun ceased to
be the Group’s subsidiary. To give a better picture for the
Group’s continuing operations, the disposed business
undertaken by Whole Sun is not included in the “Food
Products” segment for operating segment information for the
current and prior reporting periods.

In addition, the Group has also diversified its sales lead by
starting its online sales platform on Tmall.com in December
2019 and such online sales platform would enable the Group to
reach out to more retail customers and widen its customers
base.

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations categorized by business segments for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018:

AEEEARES  RPIRPBEAHE LA
EB2BMBE XA X BERREIRBEER - B
¥XFRME— A M RAT R ZE KR B ARTS -
MEBEEMEBERAREE NIEDHEEE
#ORBEAFTNBEERGS I - A T(H)E
AEEBEERE FMAERENEERERED
FEPEMSERARMER  UREAEERK
BIE DS RBUE : R)EARNEEREHAFE
ZEARKRBEBRNAERESFEOE A
B REBR09F11ABERETEZE S
(ENBARIZ—)HEMEORRELE FZA
Al RLEBRE REA2ISEBBIL &
BONBANRESRANEZS  M2RARE
BREASEMETEER LETKE EHE
STBAREBERNHE ARG o &F i i K
SEMNFECEEBRN  RERBAERS
HEMKESDBERMS  AFHESIRENE
HEXBITFAIRRBIDE -

BESh  AREBMEEHEERTIRZ T - 12019
FR2AERBBULRIREHEET S - AR
LHEFEBRSASEEBIEZTERF
WEAETFER -

TREYNFEK L EFEEHE2019F K20184F
12A31B L FEREB D HE D AREE K
I

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLLEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
(HK$’000) % of total (HK$’000) % of total

(FERx) LHREEIL

Beverage Solutions BHREE R 765,612
Food Products B M 19,386
Total 48 ot 784,998

(THT) HEEFDL

97.5% 808,734 97.3%

2.5% 22,338 2.7%

100.0% 831,072 100.0%
CENFFER RERBBRERERAR 11



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWE DN (&)

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue from continuing T~ 3t # 71| #5 48 & & ¥ 75 & £2019F K2018%F
operations categorized by geographical location for the years 128318 |G E L IR B &l 5 AY N &£ B g
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018: A

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31B L& E

2019 2018
20194 20184
(HK$’000) % of total (HK$’000) % of total

(FERx) LHREEIL (THETLT) HAREADL

Hong Kong Ea 498,965 63.6% 499,031 60.0%
Mainland China AR K B 267,032 34.0% 313,985 37.8%
Others H 19,001 2.4% 18,056 2.2%
Total 4=t 784,998 100.0% 831,072 100.0%

Note: Others include revenue derived from sales in Australia, Canada, M : EMBERERM - &K B FRA
Macau, Malaysia, Philippines and Taiwan. TEERERAEHEENKA -

The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit from | 2 & %Il #5 48 & & % % & £2019%F &2018%F
continuing operations of each of the Group’s business 12HA31BIEFEARAEEZEBKH BHKREE
segments for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018: EH

Year ended 31 December

BE12AMBLEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
(HK$°000) % of total (HK$’000) % of total

(FERx) LHREEIL (THET) HRBANL

Beverage Solutions B YR BN R 304,952 98.4% 308,135 98.1%
Food Products B 4,880 1.6% 6,043 1.9%
Total @t 309,832 100.0% 314,178 100.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWE DN (&)

The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit margin from
continuing operations of each of the Group’s business
segments for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018:

Beverage Solutions BERRER B R
Food Products R m

Total

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s recorded
a total revenue from continuing operations of HK$785.0 million,
representing a decrease of HK$46.1 million, or 5.5%,
compared to the year ended 31 December 2018. The decrease
in revenue was primarily attributable to the decrease in revenue
derived from the beverage solutions business, and to a lesser
extent, the decrease in revenue derived from the food products
business. Gross profit from continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2019 amounted to HK$309.8 million,
representing a decrease of HK$4.4 million, or 1.4%, compared
to the year ended 31 December 2018. Gross profit margin
increased from 37.8% for the year ended 31 December 2018
to 39.5% for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group provides a one-stop service for its commercial
customers that covers marketing analysis, recipe development,
sourcing, production, marketing and after sales services which
include regular customer training and equipment maintenance.
Such services are provided through the Group’s five
operational modules, which include () menu management and
recipe development, (i) strong global sourcing network, (iii)
automated product execution, (iv) sophisticated distribution
system for diverse customers, and (v) comprehensive customer
services.

TREYFE KL L ETEE E2019F K20184F
122A3MB L EEAEBESER D BNAEE
FEFE -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31B L EE
2019 2018
20194 20184
39.8% 38.1%
25.2% 271%
39.5% 37.8%

HZE2019F12A31H L FE - AEEHBFE
aes R A785.08 &8 T 0 BREL E£2018
F12A31H EFERAP46. 1B EBTLHK5.5% °
WARIPDEEZEERERRERBEBEE
MBRARD  EARRMEEELEDKRAR
Do BE2019F12A31B I FENIBTERL L E
% FT15 EF £309.88 & /& 7T ' B A £2018%F
12A31B L FER P44 EBT1.4% » F
FI = R B E2018F12A318 I FEAI37.8% =
FHZEZHZE2019F12A318 1 FE /39.5% o

AEERMBERFREREM ST - FHRHE
BORB OAE MBEHEREERRE(HEE
ETHBEEEIIRREEE) N — R -
ZERBEBAEEREEEERREE  BIF
()VERE IR N RFE ¢ ()58 KEY 2 IREREE
@& (NEBEMERNT  (VARZTIEEP M
ROBERZEZRS  RVEENEP RS -

A

—J
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWE DN (&)

Revenue from the beverage solutions segment decreased by
HK$43.1 million, or 5.3%, from HK$808.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to HK$765.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The decrease was primarily due to
the decrease in revenue derived from instant beverage mix
products in Mainland China. Gross profit decreased by HK$3.1
million, or 1.0%, from HK$308.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to HK$305.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, mainly in line with the decrease in revenue.
Gross profit margin of the beverage solutions business
increased from 38.1% for the year ended 31 December 2018
to 39.8% for the year ended 31 December 2019, primarily
because of the relatively higher gross profit margin generated
from coffee and tea products.

The Group offers frozen processed food to renowned brands
and its own frozen processed food brand “Papa Chef” under
“original equipment manufacturer” (OEM) arrangement.

Revenue from the food products segment decreased by
HK$2.9 million, or 13.2%, from HK$22.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to HK$19.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The decrease was primarily
because of the decrease in revenue derived from Mainland
China. Gross profit decreased by HK$1.1 million or 19.2% from
HK$6.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
HK$4.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
gross profit margin decreased from 27.1% for the year ended
31 December 2018 to 25.2% for the year ended 31 December
2019, primarily due to the change of product mix.

14 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2019

BERREIRE 2 R A BB E20185F12 31
HIEFERB08.7A BB TR 4318 EHE T
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWE DN (&)

Since the Group’s establishment in Hong Kong in the early
1930s, it has gradually built an established sales and
distribution network in Hong Kong throughout the years. For
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, revenue
generated in Hong Kong maintained at HK$499.0 million, which
was a result of increase in sales of coffee, tea and milk
products, offset by the decrease in sales of groceries items.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue generated in
Mainland China decreased by HK$47.0 million, or 15.0%, from
HK$314.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
HK$267.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
decrease in revenue was primarily due to the decrease in sales
volume of instant beverage mix products.

In addition, the Group also sells a small portion of our
products to Macau and other overseas countries including
Canada, Taiwan, Australia, Malaysia and Philippines through
distributors. For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue
generated in others increased by HK$0.9 million, or 5.2%, from
HK$18.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
HK$19.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
increase in revenue was primarily as a result of growth in
customers’ demand in Macau.

Other than focusing on the Group’s core business as an
integrated B2B coffee and black tea solutions provider in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China, it will continue to strengthen
its market penetration of the food products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWE DN (&)

The Group will expand its customer base by extending its
presence in Shanghai and three cities in the Greater Bay Area,
namely Shenzhen, Dongguan and Guangzhou by exploring
business opportunities and strategic partnership with more
caterers, restaurant groups and beverage chains etc. in
Mainland China. Meanwhile, the Group will also further extend
the product-mix by exploring and sourcing high-quality food
and beverage products that carry great potential from other
countries to ensure the Group is on the cutting edge of the
food and beverage solutions provider industry.

Seeing the upcoming trend of online consumption, the Group
will further expand its sales through online channel. Other than
the online platform that sells the products of the Group, the
Group intends to its strategic partners and other
international brands to trade and sell their food and beverage
products on another online platform that will be launched and
managed by the Group in the near future.

invite

The Group aims to branch out its frozen processed food
business by offering meat processing services and increasing
the varieties of processed food products to caterers and
customers. Building on the Group’s experience in providing
frozen meat and frozen processed food, the long-standing
partnership with suppliers and a well-established network of
clients and distributors, the Board believes that the tailor-made
frozen and chilled food business can earn recognition from both
corporate and individual customers, thereby enhancing the
Group’s share in food and beverage market.

With the economic uncertainties caused by a number of factors
such as social movements, outbreak of COVID-19 and U.S.-
China trade war, it is expected that the catering industry in
Hong Kong and Mainland China will face a lot of challenges in
the forthcoming vyear. With the interruption brought by
COVID-19, the Group’s financial results may be affected due to
the general market condition. Having said that the Group has
strived its best to ensure the operation of its factories in Hong
Kong and Mainland China are functioning and it has managed
to maintain stable supply of goods and services to the
customers as at the date of this Annual Report. In view of the
challenging business environment, the Group will continue to
strictly monitor the recoverability of receivables and keep close
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWE DN (&)

contact with its suppliers to safeguard stable supply of
products. The Group will get prepared to overcome any hurdle
ahead and realize its value to the Shareholders and business

partners.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
disposed of its shareholding interest in Whole Sun in
November 2019 and it has ceased to be the Group’s
subsidiary since then.

Two subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, namely Great Guarder Limited and Tsit Wing
Trademarks & Patent Company Limited, were dissolved
pursuant to the BVI Business Companies Act, 2004 and the
relevant details are as follows:

Nature of business prior
to dissolution

7B AT B9 SRS E

Name of Company

NCIEE

Tsit Wing Trademarks &
Patent Company Limited
Tsit Wing Trademarks &
Patent Company Limited
Great Guarder Limited
Great Guarder Limited

No business operation
BEBEE

No business operation
BEBEE

As the Group wishes to streamline its corporate structure in
Mainland China, it has applied for the deregistration of three
companies, namely Cadiz (Shenzhen) Caterer Company
Limited* (2 O YI) BB R 2 7)) (“CDCL”), Dongguan TWG
Heritage Food Company Limited* (RE=RERMARAF) (‘DG
TWG Heritage”) and Cadiz (Shenzhen) Trading Company
Limited* (3228 ORYI) B S B R A F) (“CDTL”), all of which have
been deregistered in 2019.

*

For identification purpose only

Es

Date of dissolution

BB

29 August 2019

201958 H29H

30 August 2019
20198 A30H

HERBETHE REERHEEIRE A5 E
EEERE  BUATRNSEER  ARRER
XBBHERESEER-

HZE2019F12A31H IEFE - REER20195F
A EEREFTARIEER » M5
THAEREENKNB AR -

RNABIREE R X RS 5T MBS /Y /i B 8
A7A] Bl Great Guarder Limited & Tsit Wing
Trademarks & Patent Company Limited @ £ 18
BoOOAF RBREAHSHEER DA - HHE
FEMT

Nature of proceeding

BFEE

Voluntary liquidation
BREE®R

Voluntary liquidation

SRFENCE:
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWE DN (&)

The Group’s revenue decreased by HK$46.1 million, or 5.5%,
from HK$831.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to HK$785.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in revenue
derived from the beverage solutions business in Mainland China
as a result of decrease in the sales volume of instant beverage
mix products, and to a lesser extent, the decrease in revenue
derived from the food products business.

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by HK$41.7 million, or
8.1%, from HK$516.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to HK$475.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The decrease in the cost of sales was primarily a result
of the decrease in raw material costs for the beverage solutions
products, which was in line with the decrease in revenue.

The Group’s gross profit decreased by HK$4.4 million, or
1.4%, from HK$314.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to HK$309.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The Group’s gross profit margin increased from 37.8%
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 39.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The Group’s other income increased by HK$2.1 million from
HK$3.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
HK$5.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
increase was primarily a result of increase in bank interest
income received from time deposits on the unutilised Net
Proceeds in connection with the Listing.

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses decreased by
HK$1.2 million, or 1.1%, from HK$117.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to HK$115.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, primarily due to decrease in (i)
marketing and promotion expenses; and (ii) logistics expenses,
which were generally in line with the decrease in revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWE DN (&)

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by HK$12.6
million, or 13.7%, from HK$91.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to HK$79.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. The decrease was primarily a result of (i)
there was a non-recurring consultancy and professional fee of
HK$6.8 million, which was incurred in relation to the Listing
during the year ended 31 December 2018, and (i) decrease in
recognition of share-based payment expense relating to the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The Group’s other expenses, net, decreased significantly by
HK$6.0 million from HK$11.1 milion for the year ended 31
December 2018 to HK$5.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in impairment of trade receivables.

The Group’s finance costs decreased by HK$1.0 million, or
22.2%, from HK$4.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to HK$3.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The decrease was primarily a result of the decrease in interest-
bearing bank borrowings.

The Group’s income tax expense increased by HK$2.1 million,
or 10.6%, from HK$19.4 milion for the year ended 31
December 2018 to HK$21.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, mainly due to the increase in profit before tax.
The Group’s effective income tax rate decreased from 20.9%
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to 19.3% for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit for the year
from continuing operations increased by HK$16.6 million, or
22.6%, from HK$73.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to HK$89.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The Group’s net profit margin increased from 8.8% for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to 11.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The following table sets out the reconciliation from the Group’s
profit for the year from continuing operations attributable to
owners of the parent to adjusted profit for the year from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the parent Mt

Profit for the year from continuing ISYNCIE PN L g
operations attributable Ffr 15 5 A ) A
to owners of the parent
Plus: i :
Listing-related expenses TR R
Share-based payment expense relating 2 & X A 5 2% & A
to the Pre-IPO Share Option BB AN B
Scheme 53
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries BE T8 2 A

Adjusted profit for the year from FBICE ETEFTE
continuing operations attributable to

owners of the parent

The Group’s adjusted profit attributable to owners of the parent
from continuing operations for the year ended 31 December
2019 would amount to HK$93.3 million, representing an
increase of HK$5.9 million or 6.7%, as compared to HK$87.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Note: Adjusted profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent
is a non-HKFRS financial
measurement which, in the opinion of the Directors, eliminates
the effect of a number of non-recurring expenses and losses and
certain non-cash charges, including (i) Listing-related expenses;
(i) share-based payment expense relating to the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme; and (i) loss on deregistration of subsidiaries,
and excluding any tax effects related to the preceding
judgements, in order to give shareholders a proxy of the
operating profit generated from ordinary course of business.

from continuing operations
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWE DN (&)

Loss from a discontinued operation for the year ended 31
December 2019 was HK$12.5 million as compared to a profit
of HK$4.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
change was primarily a result of the loss on disposal of
business undertaken by Whole Sun in November 2019 which
mainly represented the loss of goodwill associated with the
business of the discontinued operation.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group incurred
additions of property, plant and equipment of HK$30.7 million
(year ended 31 December 2018: HK$21.8 million). A substantial
portion of the Group’s capital expenditures were incurred in
relation to the purchase of coffee machines which were leased
to the Group’s customers.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitment
of HK$6.2 million (31 December 2018: HK$0.6 million), mainly
comprising the related contracts of capital expenditure in
production machineries and enhancement of facilities.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total interest-bearing
bank borrowings of HK$26.2 milion (31 December 2018:
HK$156.2 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s net current assets were
HK$403.1 million, representing a decrease of HK$32.1 million
as compared with net current assets of HK$435.2 million as at
31 December 2018. The decrease in net current assets was
mainly attributable to the disposal of the discontinued
operation.

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$315.2 million
as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: HK$328.7
million). The Board is of the opinion that the financial position
of the Group is robust and the Group has sufficient resources
to support its operations and meet its foreseeable capital
expenditures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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As at 31 December 2019, the capital structure of the Group
comprised share capital and reserves.

The Group did not have any concrete plan for material
investments or capital assets for the forthcoming year.

Save as the disposal of its shareholding interest in Whole Sun
in November 2019, the Group did not have material acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Saved as disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements
below, there were no other contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2019, on the basis of total interest-bearing
bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
parent, the Group’s gearing ratio was 4.8% (31 December
2018: 29.1%). The decrease in gearing ratio was primarily due
to settlement of interest-bearing bank borrowings.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the unit’s functional currencies.
The majority of the Group’s foreign currency purchase
transactions are denominated in the United States dollars. On
the other hand, the sales and disbursements are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
management is closely monitoring foreign exchange exposure
of the Group. The Group will consider to adopt a foreign
currency hedging policy for significant foreign currency
exposures.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rate. The Group monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and financial
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables arises
from default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

assets

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer terms. In
the management of liquidity risk, the Group has been
maintaining a cash pooling system where excess liquidity is
equalised internally through inter-group accounts. Depending
on the specific requirements of each funding agreement,
funding for the Group’s operating companies may be sourced
directly from the Group’s bankers or indirectly through the
Company.

The proceeds from the Listing, after deducting underwriting
commissions and all related expenses, amounted to HK$232.6
million.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Company does not
anticipate any change to its plan on the use of Net Proceeds
as stated in the Prospectus.

The Board closely monitored the use of Net Proceeds with
reference to the use of proceeds disclosed in the Prospectus
and confirmed that there was no change in the proposed use
of proceeds as previously disclosed in the Prospectus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2019,

the Net Proceeds had been applied as follows:

Intended use of the
Net Proceeds as stated

Actual use of

proceeds from

the Listing Date

Planned use of to 31 December

B LT HEZE2019612 831 B AR - FR1GIE
FEEZE T AR

Actual use of

Unutilised proceeds from 1
amount as at January 2019 to
31 December

Unutilised
amount as at

31 December 31 December

in the Prospectus proceeds Mote 2018 2018 2019 2019
H2019%
mLEwmA 118 &
Z2018F M20185F 20195 R2019%
NERERFEREGTET R OERE | 128318 fi 8 12A31H 12831 fi & 12A31H
BHWRERE AR NEERARE AEBHEHE REERAR ABALHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(F#&7m) (F#&7m) (F#&m) (FER) (F&r)
Strengthen business MeFEHEE
portfolio 93,044 =2 93,044 (388) 92,656
Capital investments of BEREENER
machineries and ®E
equipment 46,522 (17,618) 28,904 (15,614) 13,290
Expansion into Southeast ~ BRZEREH
Asia 23,261 - 23,261 (242) 23,019
Product customisation and 7 & % i b Jz B %
development 23,261 (614) 22,647 (2,749) 19,898
Support sales and THEEREH
marketing 23,261 (2,265) 20,996 (18,086) 2,910
General working capital —REEESE 23,261 (12,467) 10,794 (10,794) -
232,610 (32,964) 199,646 (47,873) 151,773

Note: The planned amount of use of Net Proceeds has been adjusted
in the same proportion and same manner as stated in the
Prospectus due to the difference between the estimated net

proceeds and the actual net proceeds received.

The unutilised Net Proceeds have been placed as bank
balances/time deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong as at

the date of this Annual Report.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEE

Wong Tat Tong (E#Z E), aged 66, has been a Director since
6 July 2000 and was redesignated as an executive Director on
4 September 2017. He is the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for managing and formulating overall strategic
planning and development of the Group. Mr. Wong has joined
the Group for over 40 years since May 1978. Mr. Wong is a
director of several major operating subsidiaries of the Group
and also a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Being responsible for the day-to-day
management and overall strategic planning and development of
the Group, Mr. Wong has been playing an important role in the
Group’s development and growth over the past 40 years.

Mr. Wong obtained a diploma in accounting from the Hong
Kong Baptist College (presently known as the Hong Kong
Baptist University). He is the Permanent Honorary President of
the Hong Kong Foodstuffs Association, the Permanent
Honorary President of The Hong Kong and Kowloon Provisions,
Wine & Spirit Dealers’ Association Limited, a member and a
director of the committee of The Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce and the representative of Tsit Wing Coffee
Company, Limited’s membership in The Hong Kong Chinese
Importers’ and Exporters’ Association.

Wu Kam On Keith (5888 %), aged 45, has been a Director
since 22 January 2010 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on 4 September 2017. He is the group chief operation
officer and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wu joined
the Group in 2005 and is primarily responsible for assisting in
strategic planning and business and corporate development of
the Group and overseeing sales operations of the Group. Mr.
Wu is a director of several major operating subsidiaries of the
Group. He is also the company secretary of all of the Group’s
subsidiaries which are incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Wu has
20 years of experience in finance and accounting
management.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREEE(E)

Mr. Wu was awarded the Postgraduate Certificate in
Sustainable Value Chains from the University of Cambridge in
May 2019, admitted as a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and was awarded the Chartered
Governance Professional Qualification of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries in 2018. He obtained a
degree of master of Corporate Governance from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a bachelor of arts (honours) in
accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wu is a fellow and an authorized supervisor of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow and a certified
tax advisor of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and an
elected fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrations in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Wu is currently an independent non-executive director of
Fulum Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1443), a restaurant
chain serving Chinese cuisine and Hao Bai International
(Cayman) Limited (stock code: 8431), a Hong Kong-based
contractor specialized in design, procurement and installation
services of the water circulation systems. He has been an
independent non-executive director of Sanbase Corporation
Limited (stock code: 8501), an interior fit-out solutions provider
focusing on providing services to clients whose offices are
predominately situated in Grade A offices in Hong Kong from 8
December 2017 to 2 February 2020.

Fan Yee Man (###®), aged 39, was appointed as an
executive Director on 4 September 2017. Ms. Fan is the group
chief financial officer of the Company. She joined the Group in
2012 and is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall
financial position and accounting matters, information system
and operation control of the Group. Ms. Fan is a director of
several major operating subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Fan has over 15 years of experience in finance and
accounting management. Ms. Fan obtained a bachelor of
business administration (honours) in accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. Ms. Fan is a member and a fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Certified Public Accountant certified by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREEE(E)

Tang Kwai Chang (B & &), aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He
is the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee.

Mr. Tang has over 40 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and audit risk management. Mr. Tang obtained a
diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist College
(oresently known as Hong Kong Baptist University). He is a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of the Court of Hong Kong Baptist
University and a member of the disciplinary panel of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a convenor
of Financial Review Panel of the Financial Reporting Council.
Mr. Tang was conferred with the Honorary University Fellowship
by the Hong Kong Baptist University in September 2017.

Mr. Tang is currently an independent non-executive director of
HKR International Limited (stock code: 480), a company
engaging in property development and investment and FIT Hon
Teng Limited (stock code: 6088), a company engaging in the
development and production of interconnect solutions and
related products.

Chow Alexander Yue Nong (/&# &), aged 69, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 15 December
2017. He is the chairman of the nomination committee and a
member of the audit committee. Mr. Chow has over 40 years
of experience in the financial and corporate industry. Mr. Chow
obtained a bachelor of arts degree in computer science and a
degree of master of business administration from the University
of California, Berkeley, in the United States. Further, he is a
committee member of The Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce.

Mr. Chow is an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (stock code: 755), a
company engaging in property development business, property
investments, management and agency services and hotel
operations through its subsidiaries.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREEE(E)

Wong Man Fai (E3X#), aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He
is the chairman of the remuneration committee, a member of
the audit committee and the nomination committee. Mr. Wong
has over 30 years of experience in the insurance industry. Mr.
Wong obtained his bachelor of science and master of business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong was appointed as a director of Starr International
(Asia) Limited, a private company engaging in
insurance business, in October 2018.

Insurance

Save as disclosed herein, there are no other matters
concerning the Directors that need to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders nor is there any other information
relating to the Directors that is required to be disclosed

pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Leung Kim Ming (2 & 8), aged 53, is the general manager
— Mainland China. He joined the Group in 2008 and is
primarily responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations
in Mainland China, including supply chain, general affairs, B2B
sales, B2C sales, human resources and administration
departments. Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in
finance and accounting management. Mr. Leung obtained a
graduation diploma in business administration from Hong Kong
Shue Yan College (presently known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) and a bachelor of arts in accountancy from the
University of Bolton (in the United Kingdom).
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREEE(E)

Kam Chun Pong Bernard (£ & #f), aged 63, is the group
operating officer — marketing and group operating officer —
sales B2C. He has been working for the Group for more than
six years and is primarily responsible for coordinating and
overseeing marketing affairs of the Group and B2C sales
related affairs. Mr. Kam has more than 20 years of experience
in marketing, sales management and business development
with a focus in the fast moving consumer products industry.
Mr. Kam obtained a higher diploma in business studies from
Hong Kong Polytechnic (presently known as Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) and a diploma in marketing from the
Institute of Marketing (in the United Kingdom). He also
completed a ten-week international general management
program, namely Program for Executive Development at the
International Institute for Management Development in
Switzerland.

Hau Ka Wai (R & Z), aged 42, is the Group Operating Officer
— Human Resources & Administration. She joined the Group in
2007 to 2017 and recently rejoined in 2020, and oversees the
human resources and administration department. She is mainly
responsible for corporate social responsibility and overall
human resources strategy planning. Ms. Hau has over 19 years
of experience in human Hau obtained a
Bachelor of Business from Holmes Institute.

resources. Ms.

Wu Kam On Keith (5f$%%), aged 45, is the company
secretary of the Company. He is responsible for facilitating the
procedures/activities of the Board and the Board Committees
as well as good communication flow amongst the Board
members, shareholders and senior management of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company is firmly committed to a high level of corporate
governance and adherence to the governance principles and
practices emphasising transparency, independence,
accountability, responsibility and fairness. These principles and
practices are reviewed and revised regularly as appropriate to
reflect the ever changing regulatory requirements and corporate
governance development. The Board believes that the high
standards of corporate governance is the essential core for
sustaining the Group’s long term performance and value
creation for our shareholders, the investing public and the other
stakeholders.

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31 December
2019, complied with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code, except for code provision A.2.1 which states that the
roles of chairman and chief executives should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Related
details are set out in the paragraph headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” below.

The general management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board. The Board has established various committees to
manage and oversee the specified affairs of the Company. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management power of the
Company to the executive Directors and senior management of
the Company. However, full delegation is not allowed for some
specific matters under the Companies Ordinance, the Listing
Rules, the CG Code or other regulatory requirements, and the
final decisions on those specific matters are required to be
taken by the whole board.

The Board strives to achieve high standards of corporate
governance practices as well as the Company’s mission to
creating value for our shareholders. The Board is responsible
for developing the strategic directions for the Company and
continuous monitoring of the performance of the general
management of the Company. Strategic planning is one of the
Board’s important functions for aligning mission and vision and
a lot of focus and attention have been devoted to such a plan.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERHE (F)

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board has performed above duties during the year ended
31 December 2019.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
ExERERS (E)

Currently, our Board comprises six directors, including three BRI EFE€HAAZEFTHANK  BRE=Z2H1T
executive Directors and three independent non-executve BER="ZBUIFHITEE EESHERBRK
Directors. The current composition of our Board is as follows: BT :

Membership of board

Name of Director committee(s) EEgA EEgZEEgNE

Executive Directors: HITEE -

Mr. WONG Tat Tong Member of nomination committee HEREA RELZEBEEKE
(Chairman & Chief Member of remuneration (FERITBAEZ) FMEEEXE
Executive Officer) committee

Mr. WU Kam On Keith RSPk 2 A

Ms. FAN Yee Man ok QN |

Independent non-executive Directors: BUIHHITEE -

Mr. TANG Kwai Chang  Chairman of audit committee HEZEA BEZEEGER

Member of remuneration FMEZEEXE
committee

Mr. CHOW Alexander Member of audit committee SR e BEZEZE®NXE
Yue Nong Chairman of nomination committee RELZEGXRE

Mr. WONG Man Fai Member of audit committee EXEEAE BEZLZBEENKE

Chairman of remuneration FMEEREE
committee REZLZEENE

Member of nomination committee

The designation, position and brief biographical information of & Z EFTE 2 BT - Bz MK 7 LA & 1% b i =%
each Director, together with the relationship amongst each HBEARFRSEEEAE TEREHIZHRBE
other, senior management of the Company or substantial or ZBAEREINRAFRIEELSEEIEAE|—
controlling Shareholder are set out in the “Directors and Senior & thoh I EESH B L BE 2 AG L BEE
Management” section in this Annual Report. In addition, a list Z 5l & B T & R Bt X BT 48 06 & A QX &) 48 uh
containing the names of the Directors and their roles and  www.twcoffee.com °

functions is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company at www.twcoffee.com.

The independent non-executive Directors represent half of the BYIEHITEFRHEFTSKEABE 22—

Board which exceeds the Listing Rules requirement for one- SR ETREABEN=D2—°
third.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERHE (F)

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective delivery of the Board functions.

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to set out the
objectives and the factors to be considered for achieving the
diversity of the Board in May 2018. The Board Diversity Policy
has been published on the Company’s website.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, when reviewing the
composition of the Board and considering the nomination of
new Directors, the Nomination Committee will, by referring to
the business model of the Group and specific needs from time

to time, take into account a number of factors, including
gender, age, cultural and educational background or
professional experience, skills, regional and industry

experience, background, race and other qualities, etc.
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mmmm Corporate Governance Report (continued)

tREERHRE (F)

BOARD DIVERSITY (Continued)

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board by maintaining the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognising and embracing the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. Board appointments will continue to
be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. The following chart shows the diversity profile of the
Board as at 31 December 2019:
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERKE(H)

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Wong Tat
Tong (“Mr. Wong”) is currently the chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer, responsible for formulating the
overall business development strategy and planning of the
Group. In view of Mr. Wong having been responsible for the
overall management of the Group since 1978, the Board
believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Wong taking up both roles for effective management and
business development. The Board considers that the balance of
power and authority, accountability and independent decision-
making under the present arrangement will not be impaired
because of the diverse background and experience of the three
independent non-executive Directors. Further, the Audit
Committee has free and direct access to the Company’s
external auditor and independent professional advisers when it
considers necessary. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is
appropriate in such circumstance. Except for the deviation from
the said CG Code Provision A.2.1, the Group’s corporate
governance practices have complied with the CG Code.

The Board met six times, five of which were held in person and
the remaining one via teleconference, in the financial year of
2019. Various matters such as overall business plans, financial
and operating performance of the Group, audit planning,
annual budget, the financial reports and corporate governance
related policies and practices for the Group have been
discussed, reviewed and approved (where applicable) during
the meetings. Notice of at least 14 days was given to all
Directors for regular board meetings in order to give them an
opportunity to attend. For other board meetings, notice was
given in a reasonable time in advance.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERHE (F)

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Company. There are established
procedures for Directors to seek independent professional
advice for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities,

where appropriate, at the Company’s expenses.

During the year, Directors have made active participation in the
Board meetings and Board Committees meetings.

The minutes of the Board meetings recorded in sufficient detail
the matters considered by the Board. The minutes of all Board
meetings and all other committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are available upon prior appointment
for inspection by any Directors, auditors or any relevant eligible
parties who are entitled to have access to such information.

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an
Audit Committee and a Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference.
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(2 out of 3 are independent non-executive Directors)

(ZEH A BELIHTEE)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERHE (F)

Membership of Remuneration

Name of Director Committee

Executive Director:

Mr. WONG Tat Tong
(Chairman & Chief
Executive Officer)

Member of remuneration
committee

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. TANG Kwai Chang  Member of remuneration
committee

Chairman of remuneration
committee

Mr. WONG Man Fai

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources, including the advice of independent
professional firms, if necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible to consider
and approve the remuneration packages of Directors and
Senior Management of the Group, including salaries, benefits in
kind and bonuses; bonus schemes and other long-term
incentive schemes, including share option and other plans.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings, both in
person, in the financial year of 2019. Each member’s
attendance record during the year is shown on page 44 of this
Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

i

XEARE (&)

Reviewed the remuneration policies of the Group, namely
KPI Policy, Performance Management Policy, Salary
Review Policy and Annual Performance Policy;

Reviewed the Directors’ fee for the year ended 31
December 2019;

Reviewed the updated organization chart of the Group;

Reviewed the remuneration package of the key
management of the Group; and

Reviewed the bonus scheme of the Group.

The members of the Remuneration Committee have discussed
the above matters during their meetings and made
recommendations to the Board for approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERHE (F)

Name of Director Membership of Audit Committee

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. TANG Kwai Chang  Chairman of audit committee

Mr. CHOW Alexander Member of audit committee
Yue Nong

Mr. WONG Man Fai Member of audit committee

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
the advice of independent professional firms, if necessary, to
discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and their
audit fees; meeting with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit; reviewing the Company’s
financial statements and interim and annual reports before they
are submitted to the Board; discussing problems and
reservations arising from the interim review and final audit, and
any other matters the external auditor may wish to discuss, and
reviewing the external auditor’s management letter and
management’s response; considering any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the reports and
accounts and giving due consideration to any matters that have
been raised by the Company’s external auditor and compliance
officer (if any); reviewing the internal audit programs and to
ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditor,
assessing the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and ensuring that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group; discussing the risk management and
internal control systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have effective systems.
This discussion includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;
reviewing arrangements the employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about the possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company; and acting
as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERHE (F)

The Board has delegated the risk management responsibilities
to the Audit Committee to oversee and review the adequacy
and effectiveness of relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management procedures that
have been in place.

The Audit Committee met three times, all in person, in the
financial year of 2019. Each member’s attendance record
during the year is shown on page 44 of this Annual Report.

interim results
report; 2018
results announcement and annual
statements with management and external
auditor, and recommended their adoption by the Board;

° Reviewed the 2019 preliminary
2019

preliminary annual

announcement; interim financial

financial
° Reviewed with the internal audit department their work in
relation to the Company’s internal control systems and the
periodic internal audit reports and approved the 2019

internal audit plan;

o Reviewed the Dividend Policy and made recommendations
to the Board for approval;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
ExERERSE(E)

o Met with the external auditor to discuss the nature and e
scope of the audit and reporting obligations prior to the
commencement of the audit work;

o Reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of the e
external auditor;

° Reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit and non- e
audit services provided by the external auditor, together
with its respective fees;

° Reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit e
function and compliance with the CG Code;

° Reviewed the business budget for the financial year of e
2020;

° Reviewed the policies of the Group over trade receivables e
and discussed about the impact of the legal proceedings
in which the Group was involved on the financials and
operation of the Group; and

° Held private session with external auditor in the absence e
of executive Directors and senior management of the
Company.
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mmmm Corporate Governance Report (continued)

J/L\"M\Aiﬁi(nﬁ)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZEE(E)
Nomination Committee BEZEES

Membership of Nomination

Name of Director Committee EEpR REZEEHE

Executive Directors: HITEE !

Mr. WONG Tat Tong Member of nomination committee mEEEAE REZLZEBEEKE
(Chairman & Chief (EEFITHAEH)

Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors: BUHHITEE

Mr. CHOW Alexander Chairman of nomination committee AW EREE REZECER
Yue Nong

Mr. WONG Man Fai Member of nomination committee FXIERE REZBEEKE
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERHE (F)

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent professional firms, if
necessary, to discharge its duties.

The Nomination Committee also reviews the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, gender and age) of the Board; Director’s time
commitment; policies in relation to nomination of Director and
Board diversity. The Committee would identify and determine
the measurable objectives for achieving board diversity and
monitor any progress made in achieving such measurable
objectives. The Committee would also recommend to the
Board on appointment or reappointment of and succession
planning for Director and chief executive officer.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s character, qualifications, experience, independence
and other relevant criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting in person in the
financial year of 2019. Each member’s attendance record
during the year is shown on page 44 of this Annual Report.

° Reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the mix of skills, knowledge, professional qualification and
experience of the Directors) of the Board;

° Reviewed the execution effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy and made recommendations to the Board for
approval;

° Assessed and confirmed the independence of all
independent non-executive Directors; and

° Reviewed and recommended the appointment and rotation
of Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
ExERERS (E)

Attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings, R2019MBEE SEERNEETL D T
Remuneration Committee meetings, Audit Committee meetings, ZE € &&# TEXZECTH  REZEC
Nomination Committee meetings and general meeting(s) during BREA S &3 2 HELHERIWOT ¢

the financial year of 2019 are as follows:

Meetings Attended/Held

R/ RN
Overall
Remuneration Audit Nomination General Attendance
Board Committee Committee Committee meeting Rate
Name ®E gzg FMzee ENZES REZES BRRAE BERLRER
Independent non-executive @~ BIFHTEE
Directors
Mr. TANG Kwai Chang HEZEL 6/6 2/2 3/39 N/AT & A 1/1 100%
Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong ~ JE# B 4& 6/6 N/AT i B 3/3 1/1@ 11 100%
Mr. WONG Man Fai INEEE 6/6 2/20 3/3 il 1/1 100%
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Tat Tong BEERAE 6/6° 2/2 3/30 1/1 1/1 100%
Mr. WU Kam On Keith Bkt 6/6° 2/20) 3/30) 1/10 1/1 100%
Ms. FAN Yee Man B gUNE 6/6 N/AT 38 A 3/30 N/AT & A 1/1 100%
Average Attendance of the EZEE€RETH 100%
Board Members HE®
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERHE (F)

Notes:

(@) Chairman of the Board

(b)  Secretary of the Board/Committee

(¢ Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
(d)  Chairman of the Audit Committee

(e) Chairman of the Nomination Committee

() Attendance by Invitation

During the year under review, the chairman of the Board also
met with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other executive Directors and senior management
of the Company.

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by Shareholders in a general meeting.
Shareholders may propose a candidate for election as Director
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the
Nomination Policy. The nomination procedures by Shareholders
are published on the website of the Company. Any Director
who is appointed by the Board shall retire at the next General
Meeting.

Subject to the re-election requirement of the Company’s
Bye-laws, all the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a specific term of not more than
three years under their letters of appointment. Pursuant to the
Company’s current Bye-laws, all
retirement by rotation and one-third (or the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) of Directors shall retire from office
every year at the Company’s annual general meeting.

Directors are subject to

@ EBFFERE
b EFEG ZEEMW
() FHMHEZEBE=E
) BEHRZEE®E
€ REZEEER
 EELE

REBFE ESSXFNEEEBATES
RARAGEEEBAETES ZBERT B
VIEATEESME -

ARRRBARAREZZEGZEZRLE
BERRAEHRREZEFES - BIRAIBREAR
AEIERANEREBRREREKEALEIE
F - RRZBREEFEERARF 2@ T
H-NEFSZEZEEHANT - EERRX
gLEER-

EARRERBUBEBAEEATZHERT R
BEUIENTESZZARH ARAE2EET
FHNTESZHEEHTIBBBE=F - REAX
ARABRTZERMAR 2BESTHARES
R -MBEEE=Hs2— (S&EOBETED

REZAZ)ZEERARABREBEFAKE
EiR o
CEFF RRBEBRIERABRAT 45



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERHE (F)

On appointment, new Directors will also be given an induction
program kit advising them of their responsibilities and duties as
Directors under various regulatory requirements and the Board
procedures, including the terms of reference of the Board
Committees. Such Directors will be provided with “A Guide on
Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry,
“Guidelines for Directors” issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Directors as guidelines on the general principles of duties of
directors, Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors
issued by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors (if applicable)
and Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission.

The Company Secretary regularly provides to Directors
information about the enrollment of external training courses
and seminars as well as legal alerts and articles which are
relevant for Directors to keep up-to-date on any legislative,
regulatory and corporate governance requirements and with
professional practices in a dynamic business world. The
program would help refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills in
relation to their performance of the roles, functions and duties
of directors of a listed company.

The Board also acknowledges the importance of continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to senior management of the
Company in this highly competitive consumer product market.
Senior Management is encouraged to participate in various
CPD programs at the expense of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERHE (F)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors
participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by attending training(s) and/or reading
materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

HZE2019F12A31BLEFERN  MBEESEE
B2MENR/ SHEEELARGIERRES
BELEIHNMA2EEENEERELRE
EE) o

Attending professional
briefings/seminars/
conferences relevant
to directors’ duties,
regulatory updates

Reading regulatory Reading materials and business
updates and relating to business HEERESHK
directors’ duties and industry EEREEHR
MEEEREEHN MEAHEER ES €3RI -0
EHREEZRE TENER mHe &5
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Tat Tong BEERE v v
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith B8Rk y v
Ms. Fan Yee Man B & g E v V
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHITEE
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang BEY it v v
Mr. Chow Alexander Yue Nong AR E%E v v
Mr. Wong Man Fai IXBEE v y

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 are prepared on a
going-concern basis. All the new accounting standards and
policies adopted by the Company have been thoroughly
discussed and approved at the Audit Committee before
adoption by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERKE(H)

The Group has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code (the
“Code”) on terms no less exacting than the required standards
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Code is also applicable
to the specified group of employees who may possess or have
access to price sensitive information. Specific enquiries were
made to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

Confirmations have been received from all Directors that they
have provided sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019. Directors
have also disclosed to the Company their interests as director
and other office in other public companies and organisation in
a timely manner, and have regularly reported to the Company
Secretary on any subsequent changes.

The objective of the Board evaluation is to review the Board
effectiveness and to identify areas for improvements. The
chairman of the Board has also been evaluated on whether he
has adequately and effectively performed his roles and fulfilled
his responsibilities as the Chairman of the Board. Such
evaluation is usually conducted once a year.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
has been appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is
responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities of the Board
and the Board Committees as well as good communication
flow amongst the Board members, shareholders and senior
management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERKE(H)

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to
the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer. The
Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Directors’ duties, such as giving advice on corporate
governance developments and compliance and facilitating the
professional development programme and induction
programme of Directors. All members of the Board have
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary.

The internal control system consists of a set of rules, policies

and procedures and organizational structures which aims to:

— ensure the corporate strategies are properly implemented;

— achieve effective and efficient corporate processes;

— safeguard the value of corporate assets;

— ensure the reliability and integrity of accounting and
management data; and

— ensure the operations comply with all existing rules, policies
and regulations.

Internal audit department plays a critical role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company.

Internal audit department acts as an independent role to
perform reviews over the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control and risk management systems. The
department also assesses the in particular
business or functional areas, including fraud or corruption, and
conducts reviews or audits to provide reasonable assurance
that adequate governance and controls are in place to address
such risks.

risks inherent

Internal audit department reports to the Audit Committee and
administratively to chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer. It was granted with the authority of unrestricted access
to all aspects of the Company’s activities and internal controls.
This helps the internal audit department to provide an
independent and objective assurance to the Audit Committee
on whether the control environments within the Company are
adequate.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERHE (F)

Internal audit department carries out independent review of key
business processes and controls in accordance with its annual
audit plan reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. The
audit plan is prepared using a risk assessment
methodology and taking into account the Company structure,
organisational change, overall materiality of each business unit,
management’s concern, nature and complexity of operation
and operating environment. The risk assessment methodology
assists in identifying business risks and determining audit
frequencies. Internal audit department schedules its resources
focusing on high risk areas.

annual

The scope of work performed by internal audit department
includes review of entity wide controls, business process
control review, project based operational audit
compliance review and information technology system review. In
particular, business process
reporting controls and control testing would be performed on
assessing the operating effectiveness. Business process review
is performed on a continuous basis and aim to cover all major
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries on a cyclical
basis. Project based operation audit review focuses on specific
areas with high perceived risks and management concerns.
Internal audit department also conducts special review,
investigations, consulting and advisory services related to
corporate governance and controls as required by
management or the Audit Committee.

review,

review focuses on financial

Results of audit reviews are compiled in internal audit reports
and sent to senior management of the Company for process
improvement and rectification on a timely basis. Remediation
actions have been developed collaboratively by the
management and operational teams to rectify the control
weaknesses identified. All critical audit findings and control
weaknesses are summarised and presented to the Audit
Committee for their knowledge and/or attention.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERHE (F)

The risk governance structure and the roles and responsibilities
of each layer are listed below:

Board/Audit Committee ¢ Take the overall responsibility for risk management
e Establish the structure for risk management
e Approve operational risk policy and risk management
procedures
* Understand and review group most significant risks
e Determine strategic approach to risk and set risk appetite

e Consider major incident findings and management
response

Risk management & ¢ Develop and update the risk management policy
operation control and risk register
team (“RMOC”) e (Co-ordinate the risk management and internal
control activities
e Co-ordinate committees, contingency and
recovery plan
e Review major investigation findings on incidents
e Compile risk information and prepare reports for
the Board/Audit Committee

Internal audit e Develop a risk-based internal audit programme
e Audit the risk processes across the organisation
e Receive and provide assurance on risk
management
e Report on the efficiency and effectiveness of
internal control

Department heads e Build risk aware culture within the depts
e Agree risk management performance targets
e Ensure implementation of risk improvement
recommendations
e |dentify and report changed circumstances/risks
Individual employees

Spokespersons e Consider materiality of information disclosed to
external parties
e Delivery disclosed information to relevant
stakeholders

Individual employees e Understand, accept and implement risk
management process
e Report inefficient, unnecessary or unworkable
controls
e Report loss events and near miss incidents
e Co-operate with management on incident
investigations
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
ExERERS (E)

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily

operations,

financial activities,

compliance, strategy

development and business planning, investment decision and
external factors. The process are as follows:

Process Risk
Identification

Risk Analysis

Risk Evaluation

Risk Treatment

Identify the risks through department heads and
RMOC

Identify the risks that have a potential to
negatively affect the business strategic plan of
the Group

Consider the materiality of the impact of the risk
Access the relevancy to the business strategic
plan and the level of potential impact of the
delivery of the business strategic plan

Conduct a quantity measurement on its inherent
risk level, residual risk level and target risk level
Assess the risk severity according to its level of
consequence and the likelihood of the risk event
becoming actual event

Determine the severity with reference to the
historical data, reference from the industry and
own judgment

Identify the risks and assess the options available
to accept, mitigate or avoid the risks

Decide the appropriate response in terms of its
effectiveness

Establish the priorities in responding the risks

Selecting the risk treatment options

Preparing and implementing risk treatment plans
RMOC shall make a report to the senior
management for reporting the latest risk
landscape on a regular basis
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERKE(H)

RMOC provides a risk register template for systematic
and consistent presentation of identified risks. For each
risk, there is a separate page which displays the details of
the risk, the risk severity presented in the format of risk
assessment matrix, the internal controls/mitigation
measures and the actions for improving the risk
mitigation.

The Group adopts the CSA process to provide
reasonable assurance that risks are properly managed
and business objectives can be met. It also promotes risk
awareness and the importance of up-keeping effective
internal controls.

Internal audit department has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system, including those of its operating companies for
the financial year of 2019. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the findings and impartial opinion of the audit
department on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.

internal

The Board, with confirmation from management, considered
the risk management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2019. No
significant areas of concern that might affect the financial,
operational and compliance issues and risk management
functions of the Company were identified. The scope of this
review also covered the adequacy of resources, qualification
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, financial
reporting and internal audit functions and their training and
budget.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERHE (F)

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Company
is aware of the requirements under the applicable Listing Rules
and SFO and the overriding principle that inside information
should be announced as soon as reasonably practicable after
such information comes to our attention unless it falls within
any of the Safe Harbours provisions under the SFO. The
Company has had a system in place with established policies
and procedures for complying with the Inside Information
disclosure requirements under the regulatory regime. Every
Directors have been provided with the
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission. The Company has included in its code of
conduct and staff handbook a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised disclosure or use of confidential and inside
information.

“Guidelines on

Ernst & Young has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company by Shareholders at the last annual general
meeting. An amount of HK$1.9 million was charged for the year
ended 31 December 2019 for statutory audits for the Company
and subsidiaries. The amount for the other non-audit services
provided by Ernst & Young for the Company and subsidiaries
during the year was HK$0.6 million, mainly comprised of (i)
interim review of the financial statements of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2019; (i) provision of advisory
services for the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 and (iii)
tax compliance and advisory services.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the

2019 financial statements are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 74 to 81.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERKE(H)

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the Company
may, by written requisition to the board or the Company
Secretary signed and deposited in accordance with Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, require the directors to call a special
general meeting for the transaction of business specified in the
requisition. The requisition must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda (the “Registered Office”) for
the attention of the Company Secretary of the Company. To
ensure that the requisition is received by the Company at the
earliest opportunity, a copy of the signed requisition should
also be deposited at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Flats F-J, 11th Floor, Block 1, Kwai Tak
Industrial Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong (the “Head Office”) for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary signed and deposited in
accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The
requisition must be deposited at the Registered Office for the
attention of the Company Secretary. To ensure that the
requisition is received by the Company at the earliest
opportunity, a copy of the signed requisition should also be
deposited at the Head Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders can also refer to the detailed requirements and
procedures as set forth in the relevant sections of the
Companies Act when making any requisitions or proposals for
transaction at the general meetings of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERKE(H)

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, if a shareholder wishes to
propose a person other than a retiring Director for election as
a Director at a general meeting, the shareholder should deposit
a written notice of nomination and a written consent signed by
such nominated candidate (the “Candidate”) indicating his/her
willingness to be elected together with (i) the biographical
details of the Candidate as required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules; (i) the Candidate’s written consent to the
publication of his/her personal information; and (iiij contact
details, including address and telephone number, of the
Candidate to the Company within the 7-day period
commencing the day after the despatch of the notice of the
meeting and in no event ending no later than seven days prior
to the date appointed for such meeting. The procedures for
Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director are
also published on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERKE(H)

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable
for ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard,
timely communication with our shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders’ Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to the Company’s information. The
Shareholders’ Communication Policy is posted on the
Company’s website.

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.twcoffee.com)
to keep Shareholders and the investing public posted of the
Company’s share price information,
developments, final and interim
financial reports, public announcements, corporate governance
policies and practices and other
information.

latest business

results announcements,

relevant shareholder

Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue,
including the appointment and re-election of Directors will be
proposed by the Chairman at the annual general meeting of the
Shareholders and will be voted on by poll. The detailed
procedures of conducting a poll will be explained by the
Chairman at the commencement of the annual general meeting
to ensure that Shareholders are familiar with such procedures.
The poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company on the same day following the
annual general meeting.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company. The Company has established a principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Flats F—=J, 11th Floor, Block 1, Kwai
Tak Industrial Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong and has been registered as a non-
Hong Kong company.

The Company is an investment holding company. Currently, the
Company, through its subsidiaries, primarily engages in (i)
processing and sale of coffee, tea and related complementary
products; (i) sale of frozen processed food; (iii) sale and rental
of coffee and tea machines; and (iv) food and beverage store
operations.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Group during the
financial year is set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

A review of the business of the Group during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and important events affecting the Group
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2019 are
provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 11 to 24 of this Annual Report. Further, a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group can be found in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 8 to 10 of this Annual Report. These
discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

The movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share
premium, contributed surplus and retained profits. As at 31
December 2019, the Company had distributable reserves of
HK$445.7 million. in the Company’s
during the year in Note 38 to the financial
statements.

Movements
is set out

reserves

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK3.33 cents per ordinary share (2018: HK5.78 cents) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2019.

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(“AGM”) to be held on Thursday, 23 April 2020. Upon
Shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM, the
proposed final dividend will be payable on or before Friday, 22
May 2020 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 29 April
2020.

Details of the dividend are set out in Note 12 to the financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 20 April 2020 to Thursday, 23 April 2020, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 17 April 2020.

In addition, in order to determine the entitlement of the
Shareholders to receive the proposed final dividend, if
approved, the register of members of the Company will be
closed on Wednesday, 29 April 2020, no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered on that day. In order to be
eligible to receive the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 28 April 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the

Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period (i.e. 31

December 2019) and up to 5 March 2020, i.e. the date of this
Annual Report, the Company purchased 10,918,000 Shares in
the Stock Exchange for a total cash consideration of HK$12.9
million. The purchased Shares have been cancelled as at the
date of this Annual Report and the total amount paid for the
purchase of Shares has been charged to retained profits of the
Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors are
not aware of any business or interest of the controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interests
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this Annual Report are set out on page 32.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written annual
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is satisfied that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent as defined under the Listing Rules.

confirmation of his

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Ms. Fan Yee Man and Mr. Tang Kwai Chang will retire from
their offices as Director at the AGM to be held on Thursday,
23 April 2020. Ms. Fan Yee Man and Mr. Tang Kwai Chang,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 25 to 29
of this Annual Report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

Mr. Wong Tat Tong ceased to be the director of Tsit Wing
Trademarks & Patent Company Limited, which was dissolved
on 29 August 2019.

Mr. Wu Kam On Keith was appointed as a director of Tsit Wing
(China) Industrial Company Limited on 15 October 2019.

Mr. Wong Tat Tong ceased to be a director of Great Guarder
Limited, which was dissolved on 30 August 2019.

Mr. Wong Tat Tong and Mr. Wu Kam On Keith ceased to be
directors of Whole Sun, which was disposed of by the Group
on 29 November 2019.

Mr. Wu Kam On Keith has ceased to be a director of Sanbase
Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 8501) since 2 February
2020.

For changes in remuneration of each of the executive Directors,
please refer to Note 8(b) to the financial statements.

Saved as disclosed above, there is no information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM has
entered into a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable within one vyear without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

remuneration shall be determined based on
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee, while also
makes reference to the complexity of the Director’'s work,
workload, responsibilities, as well as the Company’s
remuneration policies. Details of the Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest-paid individuals of the Group are set out in
Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.

The Directors’
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the directors and chief executives
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code were as follows:

R2019F12A31H » AR AR EERETETH
ABERBEERHEARARR T K& HE [ A58
FE(EERBHFRBEKRAIEXVE) Kk H -
HEARNDREEZSTHEEREZFRBER
BIEXVEBET7 R85 SR B A& A A 7] K Bt 32 P Y
Emfxe (BERIEES RS E0IHE K
NEERFTETHRABEESIBRAERSNE
wmAAE)  ARIBEH R E RO EXVIBE
3525 EEE ER R ARRRIBZIEFMARE
FRMAnERMXE - IRBIZESTRIZAMN
EARNARBIMOERTABLT

Number of underlying Approximate
Shares comprised in percentage of
options granted under shareholding
Number of the Pre-IPO Share as at
Shares held Option Scheme 31 December 2019
Name of Executive Director ~ Nature of Interest (Note 1) (Note 4) Total (Note 2)
HBBERAMREN
BRETHRLENER
FERO#E BREKNEBRRGHE 120195128318 B
HTESHS EiitE (M5E1) (Mzk4) Ay  REABIL(TH2)
Mr. Wong Tat Tong Interest in controlled 478,899,312 N/A 478,899,312 62.69%
(“Mr. Wong”) (Note 3) corporation; beneficial TR
owner
BEEEAE((EALEDNHS) REEERS:
ERABEA
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith Beneficial owner 412,800 963,200 1,376,000 0.18%
SEHREE ERABEA
Ms. Fan Yee Man Beneficial owner 550,800 367,200 918,000 0.12%
B /ME ERABEA
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

Notes:

1k All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company were long positions.
Directors held any short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 December
2019.

None of the

2. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of
763,937,312 shares as at 31 December 2019.

3¢ Mr. Wong directly holds the entire issued share capital of
Hero Valour Limited which holds 62.69% of the total
issued share capital of the Company.

4. All these interests held by such Directors were underlying

shares in respect of share options granted to them on 15
December 2017 pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, further details of which are set out in Note 30 to
the financial statements.

Nature of associated

Name of Director corporation

EEgE AEEE & B
Mr. Wong Hero Valour Limited
|mEAE Hero Valour Limited

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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1. Ll ANRRRG REBERGERY AL
B o R2019F12A31H  EEMER K

RABD RBEBRDRAEXE

2. RARRIR2019F12A31HHE 1T
AR763,937,3120 B D 5T & -

3. =& EHZE#H AHero Valour Limited®
EE B 7T RY AN - MHero Valour Limited
BEARRR B BITRABENG2.69% °

4, BEESHRZMPEZAN2017F12A
158 IR B X AR %S B A 8%
THRENERBESHEBARG @ EL5
18 85 73 B 7% R 3% M9 %30 ©

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding

Number of Share as at
held 31 December 2019
R2019F12831HH

R4 #A BREBABE DL

1 100.00%

B EXHEEN 0 R2019F12831H AR A
EENETETHRAEHMERAARIKEEM
HEEE (TR RFS RBE GO EXVED) &9
BROREEBROEBEREESFRBAEKRIIE
BNEARARBEFESCMASTEMNEES
KE - MERBEFESTASITHAE AR A R
RETHERIRE o



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
each of the persons, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share
capital, as recorded in the register kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholder

BRR AR

Hero Valour Limited (Note 1) (Ff&E1)
Ms. Li Ying Wah Irene (“Ms. Li”) (Note 2)
FEEL([FLx])(ME2)

Notes:
) Hero Valour Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong.

2 Ms. Li is the spouse of Mr. Wong. Under the SFO, Ms. Li is
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which
Mr. Wong is interested in.

38 Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 763,937,312
shares as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no
person, other than the executive Directors, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

201912 A31H + BN A R Bl R IR % FH & HA
BB FE3B6IEFEMNERMAIR U TAL
(RARIESTHEZITHABRINRAEARF
B REEARNDAEEHERRNAR B BT
PR AN5% S LA EiE s ROK A

Number of ordinary shares

(long position)

EBER¥E (FR)

Directly % of total
beneficially issued share
owned (Note 3)
HERTRMOA
EEDL
BEEERES (B 5E3)
478,899,312 62.69%
478,899,312 62.69%
B3 -
1. Hero Valour Limited R &= £ 2B E o
2 ZUTAELRENERS RBEZFSHSKBEK
Bl ZRTHEEARELEREAEZOER
HEROFPHEEER -
3. BARAMN2019F12A31H M E & 17K A&
763,937,312 IR 5 51 & -
B EXFRIEEE SN - R2019F12A31H « #H 4

AT (A EX[EFAFRD RAEEK
MED MR —HHFINRTESTHRINRK
ARrBORERRNEEREERLBE
GRPIFIBOIHRATCHMEBRERIORR

RABEEBEZERERAR
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are disclosed
in Note 30 to the financial statements.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of
this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director or his/her respective close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had a material interest, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in
a business that competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than
being a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

No contracts, other than a contract of service with a Director
or any person engaged in the full-time employment of the
Company, concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 December 2019.

The emoluments of the senior management by bands for the
year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

75 75 ) B AR H 51 ) 4 5 15 10 B 75 4R 5% MY 330
MRE -

RERNABMERNARERARRESMN
B ARBRAFHRAR-—BEEF ETRA
PR E MR R IRE K o

BEXRAIKEEMMB AR RN MA
RREFKEABEZHEACERR LHAR
ADRETEAEARE BN FRAFAREM
HREFENEARS THXEH -

FRBREEARAR/AENBAAES
S EFAESEANTEREAGEERL
7 45 ) 8 40 0 B S L 2 TS AE B AT
BT (EREERME) MR T EAE
S -

REE2019F12A31HIEFE - EEI Yk TF
EEBARRZHREMNEALTDEBENE
BRITBENEHN(HEEKAQAGERHLEBE
BRI LB RIE S LIBRIN) o

HZEC019F12A31HIEFE R EEENH
BHEEE T -

Number of individuals

AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000/% 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £1,500,0007% 7T 1
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed 219 and 299
(81 December 2018: 230 and 286) employees in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, respectively.

Remuneration packages are generally structured in reference to
qualifications, experience, performance and market term. The
Company has also adopted share option schemes, details of
which are set forth under the section headed “Share Option
Schemes” in the Prospectus and Note 30 to the financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group provided
various trainings to its employees ranging from operation skill
such as occupational safety training and machine control
training to professional knowledge including management
system and business knowledge, to ensure the effective
implementation of the Group’s business strategy.

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following
transaction is a continuing connected transaction as defined in
the Listing Rules which is subject to the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Whole Sun has entered into a frozen food supply agreement
(the “Frozen Food Supply Agreement”)
International dated 15 December 2017. Oriole International is
principally engaged in trading of chilled and frozen food.

with Oriole

Pursuant to the Frozen Food Supply Agreement, Whole Sun
has agreed to supply frozen food including meat and seafoods
to Oriole International. The Frozen Food Supply Agreement is
for a period of three years commencing from 1 January 2018.
There is no minimum purchase amount stipulated in the Frozen
Food Supply Agreement nor is the Group bound to supply
frozen food to Oriole International. The purchase quantity and
the purchase prices shall be specified in individual purchase
order to be placed by Oriole International.

MR2019F12A318 » ZEEH IR BB K+
& Fi2194 }2994 (201812 A31H : 2304 &
286%)EE °

FHESBRES2EEE KR RANKTHKE
KMGIE - NRABIRRABRE B - BRAT
SFBENERERIBREFEIZH LY
7% ¥k & B 7E30 -

BHE2019F12A31HIEFE  A&EEREE
HEZEFI - RAREBREL 2T R
SIBIE I SR ERAEE REEZGLEEN
BEZENG BRAVEEAEENEBLR

213

o

2R OB 3 om E

RIBELTRAUNELATE  UTRHR/FERE
X (EERLELMARA)  AETETRAE
TAAZE W E R E -

VEETELR A S EERR2017E12 158 s & 0E
RnftEz((SREREEHZE]) - Big
BRFERELREZRAMEE -

BESZRRmEERE SHRAERRN S
BREESREM(BEREREH) - 2RRM
HEWZH2018F1F1ERA AH=F - 2 &
ERtERETETHHEKERS  AEERN
FMERBFEEEHESRRER KEER
FEERENRISBE TEZNER KB
BAHETH -
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the annual cap and the
actual amount paid for the non-fully exempt continuing
connected transaction are as follows:

Connected Persons Nature of relationship

BEAL BERME
Oriole International
a subsidiary of the

Group
REE-FHHBERR
EEBEA

R = B R

The Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

“Assurance

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have
been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
2. on normal commercial terms or better; and
3. according to the agreement governing them on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

68 Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2019

Associate of a director of

HZE2019F12A31BILFE - Iz HER R
BREXSHSNFELIRAERENESBUOT

Actual amount Annual cap

purchased (HKS$) (HK$)
ERCHEKBESHE FE LR
(&) (&)
27,489,000 45,300,000
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors), have reviewed and confirmed that, except for the
continuing connected transactions as stated in the prior
paragraphs, all other continuing connected transactions entered
by the Group are exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

Since the Group’s disposal of its shareholding interest in Whole
Sun in November 2019, Whole Sun has ceased to be the
Company’s subsidiary and any sale of Whole Sun to Oriole
International would no longer constitute connected transactions
of the Company.

Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Company in the normal course of business during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

In respect of each related party transaction disclosed in Note
34 to the financial statements, the Company confirms that it
has reviewed the transactions which complied with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules (if applicable).

As far as the Board is aware, other than the non-compliance
matter in relation to a parcel of collective-owned land with an
area of approximately 7,153.3 sqg. meters in Dongguan,
Mainland China (“Dongguan Dormitory Land”) and a building
on the Dongguan Dormitory Land which the Group uses as
employee dormitories and canteen with an aggregate gross
floor area of approximately 5,388.7 sqg. meters, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and during the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

EX(EEBVYIINTES) DEMEER K
THIBFEMNFERERI I NEEFEI L
MIMBEMBEBEISRIE EWHAE
14A T3 ERH R - Bt - BERX S EHR L EST
FHRABEMAZEETHRR FEEHR 2O
ERBIBRRIERTE ©

AR AEER2019F11AHEHEREF AR
B EFTBAARRNB AR - BiEH AR
MEEERELNEANHEESTBEXNERRAR
HERS o

REZE2019F12A31H IEFE - ARARRBE S
¥NBREPITIVNERBEB AL ZFEBER
B 7% 7R R M9 5234 o

BRI AT RBENSTEB IR S M
FOAREHRBECEHNAERS  ZERH
e ELMARAMTHEERE (ER) -

BEZTeMR KREBTRET—RBERELY
71533 AR BE AL H([REBE L)
NMREFE T B EEREEL R5388.7F
FARNEFREEREEIBTERER)N
EHREBEI  HE2019F12A31BIEFE - K
SEEREAFTHETEHASEERLE
BELESAYENEBEIZEZAREAEER
FALSREBREERIXKREETHEREEK
EH e
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group followed the instructions
of the Dongguan Municipal People’s Government to go through
the process to obtain the land use rights of Dongguan
Dormitory Land by means of the tender invitation, auction or
listing procedure or any other relevant application procedures.

The Group is committed to building a sustainable future. It
assesses the materiality of various ESG issues and take
measures to control the environmental and social impacts
during operations. All businesses are required to comply with all
applicable ESG laws and regulations strictly. The Group strives
to minimize its environmental impacts through effective air
emissions control, superior water and energy efficiency, proper
waste management and resources conservation. The Group
also puts effort into creating positive social impacts by
protecting labour right and maintaining integrity. Discussion on
the Group’s ESG initiatives, performance and applicable ESG
laws and regulations can be found in the standalone
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

The Group believes that employees are important and valuable
assets and thus it provides competitive and attractive
remuneration packages to retain the employees.

The management reviews annually the remuneration to its
employees of the Group. The Group values long standing
relationships with its suppliers and customers. The Group aims
at delivering high quality services to its customers and
developing mutual trust and enhancing communication and
commitment between the Group and its suppliers.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the percentages of
purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and the five
largest suppliers were 23.1% and 48.9%, respectively. The
percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers were 25.4% and
37.3%, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or any of their close associates, or any Shareholders
of the Company (which to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

The Company’s Bye-laws provides that the Directors shall be
entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred or sustained
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty except they shall
incur or sustain through their own wilful neglect or default,
fraud and dishonesty respectively. In addition, during the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Company arranged appropriate
liability insurance coverage in respect of any legal action
against the Directors. The insurance coverage shall be
reviewed on an annual basis.

Save for the Share Option Schemes of the Company as
disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
or the relevant laws of the Bermuda where the Company is
incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

REZE2019F12A318 L FE - AEERHKEK
HEBRAAEERERENBE LS A A
23.1%K48.9% - AEBEHZABEFRAKREP
B EEE B 2tk 9 5l 825.4% K&37.3% °
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its ultimate goal. It is the policy of the
Company to allow the Shareholders to participate in its profits
and to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Board
continues to adopt a dividend policy on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee. In deciding whether to recommend the
payment of dividend to the Shareholders, the Board will take
into account various factors, including (i) general business
conditions and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; (ii) financial condition and results of
operations of the Group; and (iii) expected capital requirements
and future expansion plans of the Group. The payment of
dividend is subject to applicable laws and regulations and the
Company’s constitutional documents. No dividend shall be paid
otherwise than out of profits available for distribution. It is the
intention of the Company to distribute dividends in amounts of
not less than 35% of its net profit for a financial year by way of
cash or by other means.

Saved as those disclosed under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Group did not
have any significant investment during the year under review.

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and to adopt effective measures to achieve efficient
use of resources, energy saving and waste reduction.

During the vyear, the Group made charitable and other
donations in the amount of approximately HK$179,000 (2018:
HK$174,000).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgHE(E)

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 209 and 212 of this Annual
Report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

There was no subsequent event between the end of the
reporting period (i.e. 31 December 2019) and the date of this
Annual Report that would cause material impact on the Group.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire at the
conclusion of the AGM. Ernst & Young, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board
Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited
Mr. Wong Tat Tong
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 5 March 2020
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Independent Auditor's Report
BYZ B A ®E

Vi
EY::

To the shareholders of Tsit Wing International Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tsit
Wing International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 208, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYZBMKE(E)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
staterments section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide

PAREBTFHEIREAMANERHE  RRY
THREEMBRERNEARREENSTH &
LERRERMBFEBRAMBERRG
AEARETEEN RMATSHELFHIE
HEBNER - HTHEER BARETE
BT RIEE —FHEA A

RPCRITARE[FH IR FEEA S HHR
XAEHEE/BOFMANEL BRZAFF
WA Bt - MW B BRRITER
NEH H IR E T RRERNERRAR
LRFE PN EAEF(BREENTS
TR ERENIZ ) B0 48 R - 3 Tk P9 BT BB BT A0 4R
EMBBRABROET BRI ER -

the basis for
consolidated financial statements.

our audit opinion on the accompanying

Key audit matter

HRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFNNEEBERESNER

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5B W E B E

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade
receivables of HK$118,855,000, representing
approximately 16% of the total assets of the Group.
Significant management judgement and estimation
were required in assessing the expected credit loss
(“ECL”") for the trade receivables, with reference to the
grouping of various customer segments, ageing profile
of the trade receivable balances, existence of
disputes and past repayment history of customers
and forecast economic conditions.
M20195F12A31B: EXE BB S RBRKARER
118,855,000 7T * 1 EEEREEL16% - fFHHE
SRR FENEPEEBE(EREEER]) FAE
HEBERABMMEST K2EEEFSBLE BHE
WRIBEEHROERK BEFAUAD ERARBERFESL
N A AR SLTRA o

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

MR BN AR A MWK E3K%19 °

In evaluating management’s impairment assessment,
our procedures included: (i) obtaining confirmations
and evidence of subsequent settlements for selected
trade receivable balances on a sample basis; and (ii)
evaluating management’s assumptions used to
determine the ECL through testing of the underlying
information on the ageing reports generated by the
Group’s financial reporting system and assessing the
repayment history of the debtors as well as the
forward-looking information with reference to the
related publicly available information.
AEERERENGR  PRNERE : ()RELH
BETNESIRWENEAREREZTNBANIE ;
RiFHEEEANECERAEEBREEBNRR -
HERAS BEEBERMBHmE RS EKNRE RS
HEAGEERFHEBABNESL - ERRBEUALEK
BERNRAFSEHNIBEEES(RMER) -

A
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

BYZBMKE(E)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFNNEEFERESNER

AEETEE

Net realisable value of inventories
FEEEFE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded

inventories of HK$125,748,000, representing
approximately 17% of the total assets of the Group.
Significant management judgement and estimation
were required in assessing the net realisable value of
the inventories, with reference to estimated selling
prices and saleability of the inventories and expected
future market and economic conditions that might
have an impact on the sales projections.
2019512318 » & % B $ 15 77 §125,748,000/8
ToE BEEBEREENTR AEFEAERFEE
FREELBEREBABRNMGS K2EHFAEEBRE
EREN ULARZEHERANTARRKETISLK
BRI o

The disclosures in relation to inventories and their net
realisable value are included in notes 3 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
FERHEAEZRIFIENHBABRRHEN G VB RE
Bt 5E3/% 18 °

In evaluating management’s assessment, our
procedures included: (i) observing physical inventory
counts at major locations to ascertain the condition of
inventories; (i) obtaining an understanding of the net
realisable value assessments made by management;
(iii) reviewing the inventory shelf life report to identify
slow moving or obsolete inventories; and (iv)
comparing the actual selling prices of finished goods
subsequent to year end, on a sample basis, to their
carrying amounts.

AEERENER . FRNEFA: (N EEMEE
REMTFERY UBRAEENRR  ((\THEEEY
A RFERENE  (IEHNTFEREHRE - UH
MFEHEHIRERS « R(vVVRFEZ &R L 8K a8
EREEEREE Uil mE DA K& A&
BEEFHECBEEIR-
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B %A RS (F)

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

inconsistent with the consolidated financial

is a material

ERREFAHWHMBERAR - HMEERHR
FHRANEES  ETEEEAMBHRR LEM

B A% BR A R & o

ﬁiﬁ‘%ﬂ*/—\ﬁﬂ‘“i&%ﬂ’]%ﬁﬂﬁ?\i&%ﬁ@%
R T EZEAMEREREMNPEXLN
%n anﬁi B

BEBRMBREMBRERNET  RANEE
EHBEBEMER  EIERT  EERHEMEES
mEﬁi,ﬁ?éﬁﬂx#&%iﬁﬁ{?%ﬁn&qﬂFﬁ
THRNBEAFTEEREBRXEUFFEEX
SRR BER - ERHRMDAHITHOI/E - W
REMRR/EMESFEERERRA - A
FEREZETE-GET @ BRPRE EMAH

tl:lto

RABEEBEZERERAR 77



Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

B A RS (&)

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B %A RS (F)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

EERERZFGKFHRE ETERERR

(BEABFENDETHRG AR -EKRER
BR st 75 £ 5 48 BE 3% 3R o B8 SRR AL AT DA i BRFF =X
$EREIE - WREEFAHEMEFHEAAILR
ARYEREMBRRERAEXRBRETH
WRATE L EEORTE - RIA B A #E R BR A )
WREEK -

ERB(EBBRFTELDETRIANBIED &
MERTEXRHAE RiETEXRREE - &
(sPIE

e BHMAEARNKFHERMEBES
MEBRETEENBRRANER @ R
AARMITEREFAREELRER A

&i’éHX}EE%HH*E”J%“rEW ((FE2
MERAER - ARRFFA P RHR
e BERER FETExﬁL HEBENA

HBEH 2 £ Rt ReEE B R RFME
BH) B KR AR R AL Y Rl B = A R BE B 3R
PRl 5 &R 1 28 B R0 BB K 38 AR Rt 10 FL B
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

B A RS (&)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

financial

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

80

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2019

B H L =R

HEERAFELESTERNKEN
B & - RIBFAERNEFRE @ BE
EEFERERXBEAEENERN5#
EE - emAleERY SEEENFEL
EHRNELEEARE WREMRBRFT
EERITHEEM  AIE B EEZ A H
ERRFEAEIERAVBRRTH
HERE -BREFBORETE - B
FBERRFERBER -HMNEHE
ERNZEEBE B LEARFHETR
e A ARFENBRAATELER &

SETRFELE -

AESAMBEBRRNEBRIEIA &
BNAZR  BREEE UAREEMBHRE
EERERBRXZMER -

B BEEEANERIEBEHOMBEE
BERGR BEMENRE  WEHKR
EMBHRERER -HMERE BE&KHE
B A - EEMAT HARBAE
RAEEzREE-

HMEEZZ B G RRE T AT E

MBEEE BRI BEAEFERET &
BREMERST RN LD ABZEFHNEFMEX
BREE -



Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

BYZBMKE(E)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

in our

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Wu Ka Lai Cary.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

5 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBERZR

Year ended 31 December 2019

HE=2019F12A31H IEEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FH&xT FHE T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREXEK
REVENUE 'ON 5 784,998 831,072
Cost of sales Ei=k= 5N (475,166) (516,894)
Gross profit E A 309,832 314,178
Other income H A 5 5,127 2,968
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (115,863) (117,147)
Administrative expenses THRX (79,204) (91,770)
Other expenses, net HEMm 55 (5,104) (11,068)
Finance costs B & Bk A 6 (3,509) (4,513)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM BESEERRB A
CONTINUING OPERATIONS %= A 7 111,279 92,648
Income tax expense FIsBiRX 10 (21,466) (19,408)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM BEKEEKFBERN
CONTINUING OPERATIONS iz Al 89,813 73,240
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEETK
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR —BERLELEEFREBER
FROM A DISCONTINUED (B1]|), %R
OPERATION 11 (12,523) 4,240
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 77,290 77,480
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss (continued)

S A 2 3¢ =
melBmx(E)
Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12AGIBLFE

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of & X &% A A 15 % F,~

the parent:
— from continuing operations
— from a discontinued operation

Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the parent

(E8) :

— —AERILER

BAFAEAE AR ER
545

Profit attributable to non-controlling 3 12 A% 4 25 J& {f & A

interests:
— from a discontinued operation

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
Basic
— For profit for the year
— For profit for the year from

continuing operations
Diluted
— For profit for the year
— For profit for the year from
continuing operations

— —HERIEER

BAREEERZIFAA

e REF

BN

— FA4F

— BEREXEBHEF
il

g

— F R4 A

— BREREXZBHBF
i A

Notes

B 7

13

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’°000 HK$’000
F#& T FHET
89,813 73,240
(14,335) 2,544
75,478 75,784
1,812 1,696
77,290 77,480
HK cents HK cents
&l Sl
9.89 10.71
11.77 10.35
9.88 10.68
11.75 10.33
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEZERER

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31R IEFE
2019
20194
HK$’000
FERT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F @R 77,290
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hit2HEEE
Other comprehensive loss that may be BEE B AIEET D ES
reclassified to profit or loss in BExWEMEEEIS
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: MEHER:
Exchange differences on translation of HBESINEBEHER =8
foreign operations (3,505)
Reclassification adjustments for MEEEMMEBRRATEZ
deregistration of subsidiaries B EAR 1,013
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR HFRHM2MEEIE
THE YEAR (2,492)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FRZmHW =& %
THE YEAR 74,798
Attributable to: AT AT FEAS -
Owners of the parent NEHEE A 72,986
Non-controlling interests FE R AR = 1,812
74,798
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2018
20184
HK$'000
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(9,953)

(9,953)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ZETBMNRR K
31 December 2019
201912 A31H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Deposits paid for purchases of items
of property, plant and equipment

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and bills payables
Accruals and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

FRBEE

ME - BB M&E

B £ FH & A

kS

BILEE

ENBEYE  BELERE
HEE®
BNHIEA e REMER
KIR

BEERIAEE

RBEEHLE

RBEE

FE

B 5 WA

BN L HE R
BNE - R REMREK
IR

AJ e @ A% IR
BeMREeEHEY

mBEERE

RBEE
BEH5RNRBARENRE
F& 5T 5K IR M L 8 5 5K R
TEERTA

T RRTTE R

HERE

FE& 1~ 3238

mEE

T

/

Rk

RBEEFME

REERARBESR

Notes

B 7

14
15
16
17

20
27

18
19
15
20

21

= S e A
—E—NFFH

2019
20194
HK$°000
FERT

147,405

419

10,324

5,024
2,460

165,632

125,748
118,855

12,852
205
315,211

572,871

73,567
50,854
568
26,154
14,966
3,655

169,764

403,107

568,739

2018
20184
HK$'000
FAT

102,683
10,920
15,447

2,873
3,602

3,819
2,783

142,127

205,795

163,848
393

19,577
il
328,684

719,414

91,240
49,904

139,003

4,079

284,226

435,188

SIS
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

mEMBRRK(E)

31 December 2019

2019412 A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
B 5E FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITIE N 25 - ety
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 12,709 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBAE 27 6,295 5,771
Total non-current liabilities FEmEBAEEE 19,004 22,988
Net assets EEFE 549,735 554,327
EQUITY xS
Equity attributable to owners of &R F#E A AEhER
the parent
Share capital fi% 7% 28 76,394 76,207
Reserves 1 29 473,341 460,301
549,735 536,508
Non-controlling interests FERER - 17,819
Total equity HEm AT 549,735 554,327
Wong Tat Tong Wu Kam On Keith
BEEYE BB 88 &
Director Director
EFE EBEZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

== N/

nv_\ é *E ﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2019

%8 %

HE2019F12A31A IEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
SONGIE 2N L
Share Statutory Share  Exchange Non-
Share  premium  Contributed reserve option  fluctuation Other  Retained controlling Total
capital account surplus funds reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
&5 EE BRE EIRD FER
BA HER HARH NES it e HibREE REEN Eh Bx ERfE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TR TR THEL TR TR THL TR TR THEL TR TR
(note 29(a)) (note 29(b)) (note 29(c)) (note 29(d)) (note 29(e))
(W520(a)) (Bizkoo()) (MiE20(c)) (MfzEoo(d)) (HiE20(e))
At 1 January 2018 "2018%F1A1R 61,775 = 123,578 4,451 = 2,464 218 23,191 215,677 17,891 233,568
Profit for the year FREF = o - - - - - 75,784 75,784 1,696 77,480
Other comprehensive ~ FREM2EM
loss for the year:
Exchange BREBNEHH
differences on ERER
translation of
foreign
operations = a = = = (9,953) = At (9,953) = (9,953)
Total comprehensive N2 (H#8)/ Kk
(loss)/income for HAH
the year = & 7 5 = (9,953) = 75,784 65,831 1,696 67,527
Issue of shares under ~ REERAHEE
initial public offering BARHG 28(a) 14211 267,165 - = = = - - 281376 — 081,376
Share issue expenses  RIAETTHY = (17,001) - = T = = o (17,001) - (17,001)
Dividends %) 12 - - - - - - - (18093 (18,093 - (18,093)
Dividend paid to IRTF-EHREAR
non-controling FERBERS
shareholders of a
subsidiary 7 = = o ] 7 i i i (1,768) (1,768)
Equity-settled share NREGERERE
option arrangement ZH 30 = = = = 7,405 - - = 7,405 = 7,405
Issue of shares upon T EBERIER %47
exercise of share &
options 28(b) 221 4,147 = = (3,055) = i i 1,313 7 1,313
Transfer of share option R ERER BRE
reserve upon RiEEE
forfeiture of share
options o = & : (115) s + 115 o o 5
Transfer from retained ~ EEARAEF
profits - - - 2,367 - - - (2,367) - - -
At 31 December 2018 12018512A31H 76,207 254,311 123,678 6,818 4,235 (7,489 218 78,630 536,508 17,819 554,327
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

SRS R(E)

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31R IEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BAREAAES
Share Statutory Share  Exchange Non-
Share  premium Contributed reserve option fluctuation Other  Retained controlling Total
capital account surplus funds reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
(3 EE BRE EIRD FER

B& BER HARK ARE i e HtRE KREEN @it B ERAE
Notes HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
i3 TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
(note 29(a)) (note 29(b)) (note 29(c)) (note 29(d)) (note 29(e))
(M&E29(a)) (Hi&E29(b)) (Hf=E29(c)) (Mi=E29(d)) (Hi=t29(e))

At 31 December 2018 182018%12A31A &

and at 1 January 2019F1A1A
2019 76,207 254311 123,578 6,818* 4,235* (7,489)* 218* 78,630 536,508 17,819 554,327
Profit for the year R - - - - - - - 15478 75478 1812 77,290

Other comprehensive ~ FRE M2 AR
loss for the year:

Exchange BREBMNEHH

differences on EREZR

translation of

foreign

operations - - - - - (3,505) - - (3,505) - (3,505)
Reclassification i %? HEMHE

adjustments for ARFEZ

deregistration ﬁ MARE

for subsidiaries S - - - - - 1,013 - - 1,013 - 1,013

Total comprehensive FR2E(EE)/

(loss)/income for hzes
the year - - - - - (2,492) - 75,478 72,986 1,812 74,798
Dividends ) 12 - - - - - - - E33M)  (63311) - 6331)
Disposal of a subsidiary H&E—HHBAA 11 - - - - - - - - - (19,631)  (19,631)
Equity-settled share AR B 0 EE FR
option arrangement ZH 30 - - - - 2,443 - - - 2,443 - 2,443
ssue of shares upon  1T1F BB AR RS %17
exercise of share &
options 28(0) 187 3,440 - - (2,518) - - - 1,109 - 1,109
Transfer of share option R R EEBER
reserve upon RER &
forfeiture of share
options - - - - (80) - - 80 - - -
Transfer from retained & B R B F
profits - - - 2,936 - - - (2%%) - - -
At 31 December 2019 H2019%12431R 76304 257751 123578 9754 4080°  (9981) 218 BI04 549735 - B3
g These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZEFREELREOPAEAUBRRED
HK$473,341,000 (31 December 2018: HK$460,301,000) in the 4 A % 473,341,000 JT (2018412 A31
consolidated statement of financial position. H : 460,301,000/ L) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F12AGIBLFE
2019 2018
2019% 2018%F
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING K& EZBHEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BRFL AT A (E18)
From continuing operations REFBEKEER 111,279 92,648
From a discontinued operation FEB &I %i‘% 11 (11,820) 5,032
Adjustments for: KIATIEE A :
Interest income F8 U A (5,096) (2,858)
Finance costs B & B AR 4,552 6,005
Depreciation of right-of-use assets fFREEETE 14 11,659 —
Depreciation of other items of ME - BREREZEEM
property, plant and equipment HBEWE 14 21,900 22,511
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEHE 17 1,944 2,116
Amortisation of prepaid land lease  FEft + # & it 7%
payments 7 - 409
Impairment of trade receivables H 5 W IR R A 851 7,499
Equity-settled share option IR A E AR
expense X 7 2,443 7,405
Write-off of trade receivables B 5 FE W 30 I8 8 230 695
Loss on disposal of items of LEWE  BEL&E
property, plant and equipment HBEE 7 91 484
Loss on deregistration of BUEEMMME AR 2
subsidiaries &5 18 7 1,013 —
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAREE 11 17,053 —
Fair value loss on derivative mELB T AEAYE
financial instruments 518 7 573 —
Write-down of inventories to net FEWRREA &R FE
realisable value 953 il 27T,
Write-off of inventories 7 & i 85 1 1,032 1,176
158,657 144,399
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERAL,/(Em) 47,737 (16,761)
Decrease/(increase) in trade B 5 R RIER L, (3 n)
receivables 17,856 (3,314)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, fﬁfﬂ' RIE - e RHE M E K
deposits and other receivables RIBR AL,/ ($8 ) 4,056 (205)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills B 5 &~ 28 K JE~ 2 i&
payables R 4),/ 18 0 (9,681) 1,751
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and  JE 5t 238 K H fth fB 4 3¢
other payables 1 bu/ CRA) 2,702 (7,879)
Cash generated from operations KEMFIR® 221,327 117,991
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BEREEH ﬂ i - 544
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBFIE %R (10,342) (11,536)
Overseas taxes refunded BERBINTIE 340 =
Overseas taxes paid 2EINEIR (9,991) (7,114)
Net cash flows from operating KEEHBRESRE
activities F R 201,334 99,885
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

SEBRTRER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F12AGIHLFE
2019 2018
2019% 2018%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZEBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant EEEZE ¥  ME MFXREER
and equipment (28,893) (20,551)
Deposits paid for purchases of items XHEBEWE BE X
of property, plant and equipment HEBEBE RS (8,580) (2,277)
Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash & — i &R A
and cash equivalents disposed HBRAEENRE R
AeEZEY 11 18,765 2
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWZE « HE NKREEEB
property, plant and equipment P15 3018 234 868
Interest income received B YA B U A 5,034 2,776
Net cash flows used in investing REZSBFFARERE
activities F B8 (13,440) (19,184)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BEZBHRLAKE
ACTIVITIES i
Proceeds from issue of shares under 18 & E//Z@ FEEET
initial public offering IR P15 k18 28(a) - 281,376
Share issue expenses P in 2 1T B EZ - (17,001)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon 771 ﬁ%ﬂﬂ’é REITRG
exercise of share options FT15 318 28(b) 1,109 e
Dividends paid B E (63,311) (18,093)
Dividend paid to non-controlling 2 — M B A A Ik
shareholders of a subsidiary IR 3R AR B - (1,768)
New bank borrowings IR IT 18 K 31(b) 263,345 417,334
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITER 31(b) (386,009) (452,655)
Interest paid 215 F B (3,562) (6,005)
Principal portion of lease payments Tﬁ ENZAEEH Y 26 (11,942) —
Net cash flows (used in)/from BB EE (FTA)
financing activities FrEReRE 8 (200,370) 204,501
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN BHeRBESEEY
CASH AND CASH CR ), /& nE8E
EQUIVALENTS \ (12,476) 285,202
Cash and cash equivalents at the F#BEELERRELZEY
beginning of the year « 328,684 45,613
Effect of foreign exchange rate SN [ 3= B2 B) Y 52 BT RE
changes, net (997) (25181
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS £XR&RBESZEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 315,211 328,684
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF REeRBRSEEYHEHR
CASH AND CASH walis
EQUIVALENTS i
Cash and bank balances H& RIBITE% 174,923 188,632
Time deposits with original maturity & B &5 R 5| 8§ B D
of less than three months when “EAANTEHER
acquired 21 140,288 140,052
Cash and cash equivalents as stated &R EREXRMHIB S
in the consolidated statement of MREeEED
cash flows 21 315,211 328,684
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % R M R

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM
10, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Flats F-J, 11th Floor, Block 1,
Kwai Tak Industrial Centre, 15-33 Kwai Tak Street, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”) were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11 May 2018 (the
“Listing Date”). During the year, the Company’s
subsidiaries were engaged in the following principal
activities:

° processing and sales of coffee, tea and related
complementary products

° sale of frozen meat and frozen processed food
° sale and rental of coffee and tea machines
° food and beverage store operations

On 29 November 2019, the Group disposed of its 60%
equity interest in Whole Sun Limited to its non-controlling
shareholder of Whole Sun Limited for a consideration of
HK$27,840,000. Whole Sun Limited is engaged in trading
of frozen meat in Hong Kong. Further details are set out
in note 11 below.

A

BEBRBRERERAG(ERAT]) BE
BREAMAINEBRAA - XA FIH
=T 3t = B2 12 7 Victoria Place, 5th Floor,
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda c AR AW B & B R
EEM AL BB SREELIER
DEIEAEF-JE -

RNRBBREZERRE ° MA R E H AL
f ([ Bx £71) ®m20185F5 A 1B ([ £ ™ H
HORBEEBREXSMARARA (B
T ERLE™M - ARFKMHEBRARF
NIEE NI EBRT -

e MIKHEMDE XRBBAEEE

oh
. HESRAELRZRBEERM
. $H 8 M 78 00 oE ¢ R S
e RBRBKEBERELE
MR2019F11 A29H  REBE mEFE 5
ERAFIEERBREHEENEFTE S
AR R A RI60% M #E - {8 &27,840,000
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

92

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Name

L

Dongguan Tsit Wing Food
Co Ltd.*

RERXRmARAFY

Shanghai Tsit Wing Food
Co Ltd.*

LERRERMERAA

Tsit Wing Beverage Machine
Company Limited
RREHRERRLA

Tsit Wing Coffee Company,
Limited

REMEARAA

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
MK B
REXHH

PRC/Mainland
China

B/ B A i

PRC/Mainland
China

B/ B A i

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
ERTER/
ot ff R &

HK$78,880,000

78,880,000/ 7T

US$2,400,000

2,400,000% 7T

HK$10,000

10,000% 7T
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ARABTEMBRRFBWT :

Percentage of equity

attributable to
the Company
KRB ELER
Bk
Direct

= 100

o 100

i 100

T3 100

Indirect

E# A&

Principal activities

IREY

Processing of coffee beans;
distribution of coffee, tea,
and related complementary
products; and food and
beverage store operations

MMIMBEE - 2 #HmMeE - KR
HREEER  RmREHK
B E

Trading of coffee, tea and

related complementary
products; sale and rental of
coffee and tea machines;
and sale of frozen
processed food

EEMS RREBEEE
m R E RS W R
B ARHESRERR M

Trading of coffee machines

and related products

EEM R EEEMR

Processing of coffee beans;
distribution of coffee, tea
and related complementary
products; sale and rental of
coffee and tea machines;
and sale of frozen
processed food

MIMBET - S WM K R
HEREEm: HERMEE
MBEE A UREES
REHRMm



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019

2019412 A31H

Name

L

Tsit Wing (China) Enterprises
Company Limited
BR(PE)GEERAA

Tsit Wing (China) Holdings

Limited

BER(PEERERA A

Tsit Wing (China) Industrial
Company Limited

BR(PE)BEZERAA

Tsit Wing (Hong Kong) Company

Limited

RREE(BR)ARAA

Tsit Wing International Company

Limited*

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
MK B
REF®E

Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
&R
Hong Kong
B
British Virgin

Islands

RBEZES

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRGTER/
ot fit R A

HK$1

178 7T
HK$22,264,780
22,264,780/ 7T
HK$5,143,000
5,143,000/ 7T
US$10,276

10,276 7T

The statutory financial statements of these companies are

not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network

4 These companies are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises established under PRC law

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company

AQEELER
Bok

Direct Indirect
R 563
iy 100
100 =
o 100
e 100
100 7

Ay

Principal activities

IRED

Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
RERK
Investment holding
REZR
Investment holding
REER
Investment holding

REEK

Y ZERAREEABRRAREL X &
KEBEBEETHNEERRINKE QA

B

d % E R B R IR R P BDA AL A S
HEELE -

ERITEERRIBEREINAFREA
SERAEEEEFREERZRINASE
B EAR - EERA  MIBHEMKE

RAER B

—J

\F\
NN
b

=7
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

94

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirement of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for the derivative
financial instruments which have been measured at fair
value. They are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$’000) except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of
any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

over

A
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H
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The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

REEDAFE B HRER A REA A
THAIREETEBUHRELER -

statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Leases

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3,

to HKFRSs

2015=2017 Cycle

HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has had
no significant financial effect on the Group’s results of
operation and financial position, except for HKFRS 16
Leases (“HKFRS 16”) as described below.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 177),
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
(“HK (IFRIC)-Int 4”), HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under
a single on-balance sheet model to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance
leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore,
HKFRS 16 did not have any financial impact on leases
where the Group is the lessor.

contains a Lease

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the
standard has been applied retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at 1 January
2019, and the comparative information for 2018 was not
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17
and related interpretations.

Ay
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

98

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset and the
right to direct the use of the identified asset. The Group
elected to use the transition practical expedient allowing
the standard to be applied only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts
that were not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1
January 2019.

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
property and other equipment. As a lessee, the Group
previously classified leases as either finance leases or
operating leases based on the assessment of whether the
lease transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the
Group applies a single approach to recognise and
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all
leases, except for two elective exemptions for leases of
low value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and
lease with a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term
lease”)(elected by class of underlying asset). Instead of
recognising rental expenses under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term commencing from 1
January 2019, the Group recognises deprecation (and
impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets and interest
accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance
costs).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based
on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1
January 2019 and presented separately in the statement
of financial position. The
measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before 1 January 2019.

right-of-use assets were

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based
on HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets on that date. The
Group elected to present the right-of-use assets as
property, plant and equipment in the statement of
financial position.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

° Applied the short-term lease exemptions to leases
with a lease term that ends within 12 months from
the date of initial application

° Used hindsight in determining the lease term where
the contract contains options to extend/terminate
the lease
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31 December 2019

2019412 4318
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 S BERBBREE (&)
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EBMBERELENE1EHE (&)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as ERERBA — ZAI 7 BERREHENH
operating leases (Continued) B(#E)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 2019F 1 A1 H 8951 7% 5 &
The impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 as at M20195F1 A1 8 R & 4 0 1 W & % A
1 January 2019 were as follows: FIHEENMTENT ¢
Restatement
At adjustment on At
31 December adoption of 1 January
Statement of Financial Position 2018 HKFRS 16 2019
BIRMEB
20185 B & %R 20195
B 31k R R 12A31H F16RNAE 1818
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTAT TAT TAT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment #1% B k& & 102,683 29,553 132,236
Prepaid land lease payments  FEff i &% V1818 (11,313) T
Total assets BEEHET 113,996 18,240 132,236
Liabilities =L
Current lease liabilities mEBHERE 7 7,855 7,855
Non-current lease liabilities FERBEHERE = 10,385 10,385
Total liabilities BERAR T 18,240 18,240
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 BT BREREHRIKE (&)

AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (Continued)

Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (Continued)

A reconciliation of the operating lease commitments as at
31 December 2018 to the lease liabilities as at 1 January
2019 is as follows:

EARAMEBREEREIREE (£E)
ERERBA — ZAI 7 BERREHENH
B(#E)

2019F1H1HBI B & 2 ()
HE2018F12A31HM KL &M ERIEN
HEIOF1ATEMBEEAENHEN
TN

Notes HK$’000
B 5 FHET
Operating lease commitments as at R2018F12 A1 B M & &R IE
31 December 2018 33(b) 21,320
Less: Commitments relating to short-term & : B2 B & & 82 T B
leases and those leases with a 2019F 12 A31H K Z AI4R L
remaining lease term ended on or B30 5 A B A
before 31 December 2019 (3,5006)
Add: Payments for optional extension I R2018F12A31 B AR A A 212
periods not recognised as at 31 ERINR
December 2018 1,463
19,277
Weighted average incremental borrowing 7201941 A1H K i F19EE E & Fi &
rate as at 1 January 2019 3.64%
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1EMBERRE 26 18,240

=
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019

201912 A31H

The Group has not applied the following new and revised AEBEVEALETHEERRTPER T

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, EEMERRERDNITF REEFTE B

in these financial statements. g E 2R

Amendments to Definition of a Business' BEREMBHREER FHREE
HKFRS 3 SB35 (B FT &)

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark S5 7% k& R HEFE =
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39  Reform' FOW  BEEET
and HKFRS 7 KR FEI% KRB

B ERIETHR
CCHEN,

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets BB %G &R 1 EZE 8 AT
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its FIOR R BB GE AVAY-TEI =
HKAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture® B F285E (20114F) ZBrEZMH

CHEN, HEKFA
BE°
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BEREM B HREER R & A
FA75R
Amendments to Definition of Material' BEASHENEIRR Ztay
HKAS 1 and B gt £ BI85 E &'
HKAS 8 (BT A)
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January g M20205F1 A1H Sk BB e FE BifE
2020 £
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 MR2021F1A1B K H B RB/FE R
2021 A
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available g MARE RS ER B EATRA
for adoption

The Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs REBRE ZEHII NKEITETAH

may result in changes in accounting policies and are not BRELEATREEHSHARKRES B

expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s EHRrTEeUAREENTBERREKEKX

financial statements. Ao
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

interest is remeasured at its

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

N Y

EBEHIERKREEAR FEZED
REDARBEHNRFEFTE &2
FEAAKREMERNEE A&HY
WUBHAMEREAAENEERAEE
T AT DA B A5 U BB 7 4 ) 4 O SR O IR
BEHHBZAFENAN RS EHKEH
mME AEEREERGARTFERENL
MBI BRFEENLLA - SHER
RRBE T BRE A RS AN ER
R TERSAARLIDEFEENI
ERES  FTEREMIFERERARRK
RFEAE - WEHEKARELERX
8 o

EAKEUBE-REBE @REAHN
flRak - RURE B B OB R IR M AR B 1%
HRIGMAENEREERBE  NAIE
HEENDBEREERE  ETEES
WMEBHEROTHNBRARNITETAE
ToBE-

R B A 0 0 B BRSEA - 7t Bl A 15 AR
ERWBERMREAFESHFE ME
A EL KSR BRGNS R o

WEITREENEAIXARERKER
HRAFEER "B REELREN
KARBEAFENE A FEEIRN
BRER -2 BEAEaNIRRETS
EFNE ERGEEE#aT AR
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31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

104

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is
unobservable

Level 2 i

Level 3 37,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than,
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.

have decreased. If such an
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A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

0)

(i

(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

0)

(it

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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2019412 A31H

(b) (Continued)

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group of to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Over the lease terms

Shorter of the lease terms
and 2.2%

4% to 33.33%

Leasehold land
Buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Customer relationship and trademark are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 7
and 10 years, respectively.

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

is, or

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Prepaid land lease 36 years
Leased properties 2 to 4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.
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Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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In calculating the present value of lease payments, HAEMEMNFORER  WHEER
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the FIBREMAMETZETE H AIAE

lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a
change rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

in an index or

The Group’s lease liabilities are presented separately
in the statement of financial position.
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The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment and
laptop computers that are considered to be of low
value.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are

initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive,
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

discounted at an

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For
those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.
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The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 120 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with
policies as described above.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities included trade payables,

accruals and other payables and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.
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The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

loss when the liabilities are

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Gains or losses on liabilities held
for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.
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Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set
out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.
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The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency
risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average method and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.
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For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group
a significant financial benefit for more than one vyear,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Revenue from the leasing of coffee and tea
machines is recognised over time in accordance
with the terms of respective underlying agreements
because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

The Group also provides leasing of coffee and tea
machines with the sale of coffee and tea products.
If customers’ purchases of coffee and tea products
reach the agreed minimum amount, the rental
charge of machines for that month will be waived.
Such pricing arrangements are settled monthly or
quarterly and the rental of machines is bundled
together with the sale of coffee and tea products.

The contracts for bundled sale of goods with leasing
of coffee and tea machines comprised of two
performance obligations because the promises to
transfer the goods and provide leasing of coffee and
tea machines are capable of being distinct and
separately identifiable. Accordingly, the transaction
price is allocated based on the relative standalone
selling prices of the selling prices of the coffee and
tea products and rental of coffee and tea machines.
The revenue recognition of the sale of goods and
leasing of coffee and tea machines is set out above.
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Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Group transfers the related goods or
services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants to recognise their contribution to the Group.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in note
30 to the financial statements.
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The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.
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Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period is
permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the end of the reporting period for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by
the employees and carried forward.
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The Company continues to operate an occupational
retirement scheme registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. This
scheme has been granted exemption pursuant to Section
5 of the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. When an
employee leaves the scheme before his/her interest in the
Company’s employer contributions vesting fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Company are
reduced by the
employer’s contributions.

relevant amount of the forfeited

Since December 2000, the Group operates a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ The Company’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

basic salaries.

Contributions from these schemes are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the schemes. The assets of these schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and Bye-
Laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).
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In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.

expense or income on

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgement,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

The Group provides leasing of coffee and tea machines
that are either sold separately or bundled together with
the sale of coffee and tea products to a customer. The
leasing of machines are a promise to transfer services in
the future and are part of the negotiated exchange
between the Group and the customer.
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The Group determined that both sale of coffee and tea
products and leasing of coffee and tea machines are
capable of being distinct. The fact that the Group
regularly sells both coffee and tea products and leasing of
machines on a stand-alone basis indicates that the
customer can benefit from both products on their own.
The Group also determined that the promises to transfer
coffee and tea products and to lease the coffee and tea
machines are distinct within the context of the contract.
The sale of coffee and tea products and leasing of coffee
and tea machines are not inputs to a combined item in
the contract. The Group is not providing a significant
integration service because the presence of the sales of
coffee and tea products and leasing of coffee and tea
machines together in the contract does not result in any
additional or combined functionality and neither the coffee
and tea products nor the leasing of coffee and tea
machines customises the other. In addition,
and tea products and leasing of coffee and tea machines
are not highly interdependent or highly interrelated,
because the Group would be able to sell the coffee and
tea products even if the customer declined leasing of
coffee and tea machines and vice versa. Consequently,
the Group allocated a portion of the transaction price to
the sales of coffee and tea products and leasing of coffee
and tea machines based on relative stand-alone selling
prices.

the coffee

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.
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The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to ageing analysis
and other specific assessments of the Company’s
inventories, projections of expected future saleability of
goods based on historical sales patterns and other
specific attributes, and management experience and
judgement. Based on such review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
values. Due to changes in market and economic
environment and customers’ preference, actual saleability
of goods and actual selling prices that could be realised
might be different from the original estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation.

The provision rate of trade receivables is made based on
the assessment of their recoverability and the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables as well as other
quantitative and qualitative information and on
management’s judgement and assessment of the
forward-looking information. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customers’ actual default in the
future. Information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 19 to the financial
statements.
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For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the beverage solutions (“Beverage Solutions”)
segment processes and distributes coffee, tea and
related complementary products, sells food and
beverages,
products, operates food and beverage store and
leases coffee and tea machines; and

coffee machines and other related

(b)  the food products (“Food Products”) segment trades
frozen processed food.

During the year, the Group disposed of its frozen meat
business in Hong Kong which was included in Food
Products segment in the year ended 31 December 2018.
Since the frozen meat business represented a major line
of Food Products segment in Hong Kong, the frozen
meat business was regarded as a discontinued operation
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations. Accordingly, the
related financial information of the frozen meat business
was not included in the operating segment information
from the continuing operations and the comparative
information was also reclassified to conform with the
Further details of the
discontinued operation are set out in note 11.

current year’'s presentation.
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Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax from continuing operations.
The adjusted profit/loss before tax from continuing
operations is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax from continuing operations except that
interest income, head office and corporate expenses as
well as non-lease-related finance costs are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instruments,
interest-bearing bank borrowings other than trust receipt
loans, other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with

reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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201912 A31H
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
ERRERHB Bm &5t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET TERT
Year ended £ 22019F12831H
31 December 2019 HFEE
Segment revenue (note 5) 2 U A (HFE5)
Sales to external customers HE TINDER 765,612 19,386 784,998
Segment results PEHEE 126,145 1,973 128,118
Reconciliation: HEE
Interest income B WA 5,094
Corporate and unallocated TrERRDERSZFE
expenses, net (19,395)
Finance costs A& KA (2,538)
Profit before tax from FEREEBIEB
continuing operations B& % A1 4 A 111,279
Other segment information: Hft5HEH :
Depreciation and amortisation  #1 & K & &4 33,164 - 33,164
Reversal of impairment of trade & 5 [ Yz 338 i B £ [
receivables (351) - (351)
Impairment of trade receivables & 5 & W 3 18 5 (B 775 69 844
Write-off of trade receivables & 5) & It 3% 18 i 4 230 - 230
Write-down of inventories to net 17 & F R = ] &35 % &
realisable value 851 102 953
Write-off of inventories 17 & i 85 628 404 1,032
Loss on disposal of items of  HEWE BE &&E
property, plant and BEERE
equipment 91 - 91
Capital expenditure* EARRAY 37,445 - 37,445
5 The capital expenditure includes purchases of property, G EARAYBRREFBELCEEREEYD
plant and equipment of HK$28,865,000 and deposits for ¥ B & &% 1%528,865,0007% 7T A & B
purchase of property, plant and equipment of EME - WE K& # % £8,580,000%8
HK$8,580,000 incurred for continuing operations. T
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31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

140

As at 31 December 2019

Segment assets

Reconciliation:

Corporate and unallocated
assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:

Corporate and unallocated
liabilities

Total liabilities

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2019

R2019512A31H
THEE

#HH -
CRXRERDEAE

BEEMRE

PHEE
E): 2
CERRDEGE

B AR

Beverage
Solutions
ERRERE
HK$’000
THERT

390,144

182,413

Food
Products
Bm
HK$’000
THER

30,875

1,134

Total
At
HK$’000
T

421,019

317,484

738,503

183,547

5,221

188,768



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
ZHRERH Bm &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTAL FTAT FTAT
Year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184 123311
HEE
Segment revenue (note 5) 2 Z U A (B &E5)
Sales to external customers HETINEEP 808,734 22,338 831,072
Segment results PHEE 121,142 2,889 124,031
Reconciliation: Hik -
Interest income 2B A 2,857
Corporate and unallocated rERRDERZFE
expenses, net (29,727)
Finance costs A& AN (4,513)
Profit before tax from SEREEBIG
continuing operations B B Al g A 92,648
Other segment information: HtbZHER :
Depreciation and amortisation 17 & K # 4 22,861 - 22,861
Reversal of impairment of trade & 5 & Ux 3X 38 5 (B # [
receivables (10) (15) (25)
Impairment of trade receivables & 5 & W 3038 A (B 7,475 24 7,499
Write-off of trade receivables & 5 [f& Ut 75 18 #f 5 484 £ 484
Write-down of inventories to net 77 & 8 2 7] &35 % @&
realisable value 848 182 1,030
Write-off of inventories 17 5l 736 440 1,176
Loss on disposal of items of  HEWE¥  BERHXE
property, plant and HE B8
equipment 484 i 484
Capital expenditure* BEARFET 21,976 — 21,976

The capital expenditure included purchases of property,

plant and equipment of HK$19,699,000 and deposits for

purchase of property,

plant and equipment of

HK$2,277,000 incurred for continuing operations.

BEARAYBRREMBELCEEREEYD
¥ W E KR #19,699,0005 7T A K& B
EVE BEKREIR$2277,0008

JG °©
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PR R M (&)

31 December 2019

2019412 A31H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REZTWBER (&)
(Continued)
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
BHERERYG Bm &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAET FETT FET
As at 31 December 2018 M2018F12A831H
Segment assets PHEE 405,459 11,566 417,025
Reconciliation: #ER -
Corporate and unallocated %N kDB & E
assets 323,340
Assets related to a ERIEEFEBEE
discontinued operation 121,176
Total assets BERE 861,541
Segment liabilities SEHEE 170,629 2,285 172,914
Reconciliation: #ER -
Corporate and unallocated M KRADEEE
liabilities 76,164
Liabilities related to a ERILEXBHEAERE
discontinued operation 58,136
Total liabilities BfE@%E 307,214

142

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019

2019412 A31H
Hong Kong B
Mainland China H A
Others A

2019
20194
HK$°000
FERT

498,965
267,032
19,001

784,998

2018
20184
HK$’000
FAET

499,031
313,985
18,056

831,072

The revenue information of continuing operations
above is based on the locations of the customers.

Hong Kong i
Mainland China A B A 3

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax
assets and financial assets.

During the year, the Group’s revenue from sales to an
external customer from continuing operations, which is
over 10% of the total revenue, amounted to
HK$199,639,000 (2018: HK$234,823,000).

R FFERE X AER TR
BEPHREMES -

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TATT
82,909 43,634
78,027 76,265
160,936 119,899

LR RBEEEN IREEEMN
EMZ25 I ABREEREREE
NREMEE-

FRN ASEREKEEBMEREH
BT —RINEBE P 8 U A199,639,0007%8
70 (20184F : 234,823,000/ 7T ) 1 42 Ug A
#10% °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019

201912 A31H
An analysis of disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from AEBEREREEBNEPLPEHRAN
contracts with customers from continuing operations is as i (N
follows:
Beverage Food
Solutions Products Total
ERKERHK Bm &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER
Year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019%12H31H
LFEE
Type of goods or service EmBREER
Sales of coffee, tea and other HEMYE XL HA
related complementary products  HHEE EE & 739,895 - 739,895
Sales of frozen processed food HESRBERM - 19,386 19,386
Rental income from leasing of £ 8 00 A R 5%
coffee and tea machines e A 25,553 - 25,553
Food and beverage store RmRkEHRIEEE
operations 164 - 164
Total revenue from contracts EFEHWRARE
with customers 765,612 19,386 784,998
Geographical markets AR
Hong Kong 5 480,928 18,037 498,965
Mainland China A 265,683 1,349 267,032
Others H 19,001 - 19,001
Total revenue from contracts with B FE & #W A @5
customers 765,612 19,386 784,998
Timing of revenue recognition W A B 52 5 [
Goods transferred at a point in time RN EBHE®ERE R 740,059 19,386 759,445
Services transferred over time PR B R 8 R 25,553 - 25,553
Total revenue from contracts with EF A 4 A &%
customers 765,612 19,386 784,998
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

Year ended 31 December 2018

Type of goods or service

Sales of coffee, tea and other
related complementary products

Sales of frozen processed food

Rental income from leasing of
coffee and tea machines

Food and beverage store

operations

Total revenue from contracts with

customers

Geographical markets

Hong Kong
Mainland China
Others

Total revenue from contracts with

customers

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time
Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts with

customers

B E2018%12H31H
HEE

K 3 IR 7% Al
HEME KR EA
HEEKEEM
HESREHRM
£ 7 00 4 B IR
mE e WA
RmkERELE

L N L

i & 5
B
B At
H At

EEFAHNBRAER

DON 3570

S EIEE
R R

®© O
= on

AR %

N

SN

BEEAHBABE

Beverage
Solutions
ERREIRYG
HK$'000
TET

786,538

21,945

251

808,734

481,030
309,648
18,066

808,734

786,789
21,945

808,734

Food
Products
Bm
HK$'000
FTET

22,338

22,338

18,001
4,337

22,338

22,338

22,338

Total
=
HK$’000
FHE

786,538
22,338

21,945

251

831,072

499,031
313,985
18,066

831,072

809,127
21,945

831,072
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PR R M (&)

31 December 2019

2019412 A318
5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WEKRHEMBKAE)
(Continued)
Other income H g A
An analysis of other income from continuing operations is REBRKEEBAMEHEMBRAITAT :
as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FAT
Bank interest income RITH B WA 5,094 2,857
Others H A 33 111
5,127 2,968
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. RIERAK
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is REBLSEEBRMEREXNETDNNAT :
as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Interest on bank borrowings |ITERFE 2,538 4,513
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 971 o
3,509 4,513
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019

201912 A31H
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations AEERFELCEEBAMERTIANEF D
is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B (BEA) THI S IB M ER :
2019 2018
2019% 20184
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAET
Auditors’ remuneration % 85 A % B 2,064 2,223
Cost of inventories sold" EEFEKAR" 437,379 477,679
Listing-related expenses FHHEERX - 6,791
Depreciation”: wE :
Right-of-use assets CREEE 11,328 7
Other items of property, plant and Hmmz - WE
equipment M & IR H 21,725 22336
33,053 22,336
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHEH 111 116
Amortisation of prepaid land lease A L E K
payments s - 409
Lease payments not included in the KT AHEEGED
measurement of lease liabilities/ MEMNR &&
minimum lease payments under HENREHEE
operating leases L= 3,830 11,386
Foreign exchange differences, net* e W = E SRR 719 420
Reversal of impairment of trade 2 5 W RIBRE
receivables* # B (351) (25)
Impairment of trade receivables* B 5 W IR R (B 844 7,499
Write-off of trade receivables* B 5 e W R TE i 230 484
Employee benefit expenses’: EEBAMAZ":
Salaries, wages, allowances and & ITE MR
bonuses* AL* 115,507 118,415
Equity-settled share option expense EmiEE R
i X 2,443 7,405
Pension scheme contributions (defined BRESFHEIHRR(AE
contribution schemes) it KET &) 5,348 4,806
123,298 130,626
Write-down of inventories to net realisable 17 & 8 = 7] & 38
value* FE* 953 1,030
Write-off of inventories* 15 & 85~ 1,032 1,176
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BE
plant and equipment* RBIEEBE 91 484
Loss on change in fair value of derivative #7444 &l T B A F({EE S
financial instruments* BB 573 —
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries* BUB M B 2 A
Eiar 1,013 T

A
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A The cost of sales for the year amounted to HK$475,166,000
(2018: HK$516,894,000) and included cost of inventories
sold of HK$437,379,000 (2018: HK$477,679,000),
depreciation charge of HK$15,051,000 (2018:
HK$14,257,000) and employee benefit expenses of
HK$13,028,000 (2018: HK$14,531,000).

i Included in salaries, wages, allowances and bonuses were
lease payments for staff quarters of HK$224,000 which are
not included in measurement of lease liabilities (2018:
HK$2,277,000 were operating lease payments).

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees w4
Other emoluments: HihE & -

Salaries, allowances and benefits ¥ & - 2L X E W& A

in kind
Performance related bonuses
Equity-settled share option

R

s
I>

ST 4L

expense
Pension scheme contributions BIREFTEIH R
(defined contribution schemes) (R EHREED

*

It denotes the remuneration of the relevant personnel for
the eight months ended 31 December 2018.
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oA ERRERX

y ZEFBHARGBERZ[EMAX
FEEIA o

¢ A % Bk AN A475,166,00058 7T (2018
F : 516,894,000 L) - B BEEER
B B 7R437,379,000% T (20184 :
477,679,000% JT): 1 & H X
15,051,00078 7T (20184F : 14,257,0007
L) & B B & A B 13,028,0007% 7T
(20184 : 14,531,000/ 7T) °

3 A I8 - RURIEAAREBITRE
= MHE N F224,0008 T ETBER
HMEARBZHE(2018F : KREMEN
FX2,277,000/ 7T) °

BiE EmRA - FF QA EH E383(1)
@ 0 kHER AR (BREEEN
B R R B FE2E T B 2 F R E = H
m

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$’000 HK$’000

F&T FHB T
900 600*

10,103 9,831

489 1,360

699 1,979

355 462

12,546 14,232

% It ThEE =2018F12 318 1E/\ @ A #8
@A TR EH BN -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019

201912 A31H

During the year ended 31 December 2018, certain H E2018F 128318 L FE  BEAR
directors were granted share options in respect of their AERETE ETESHEHAEE
services to the Group under the share option scheme of ZRBERERE E—PHBIHRY
the Company, further details of which are set out in note BHmEMF0 - EEBEREZAFER
30 to the financial statements. The fair value of such EEAEAREBEEXR BREIIRE
options, which has been recognised in the statement of HHHEFTEFARFEYHREROE
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as HEERLAESHFMEEER S -

at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

The fees paid to independent non-executive FAZNTRIENTEZTNES
directors during the year were as follows: m
2019 2018*
2019% 20184+
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHE T FHET
Mr. Tang Kwai Chang HEZLAE 300 200
Mr. Chow Alexander Yue SR e
Nong 300 200
Mr. Wong Man Fai EXEBEAE 300 200
900 600
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAVERBYLIIFNTESIHE
independent non-executive directors during the year b 3 BN (20184 : £&) o
(2018: Nil).
% It denotes the fee paid to the relevant independent * I Th 36 E 201812831 H IE N
non-executive Directors for the eight months ended EARBEBILIFEATESTSH
31 December 2018. HEMR -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019

2019412 A31H
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
R4 B BELEE Bife
e RENEAN BT BRENX TR HMEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEL TR THL TEL TR
2019 2019%
Mr. Wong Tat Tong BEEEELE - 6,292 263 - 219 6,774
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith B3R %4 - 2,393 113 419 89 3,014
Ms. Fan Yee Man BagMA - 1,418 113 280 47 1,858
- 10,103 489 699 355 11,646
2018 2018F
Mr. Wong Tat Tong BEE L - 6,180 533 - 426 7,139
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith B35 % %4 - 2,220 459 1,187 18 3,884
Ms. Fan Yee Man B - 1431 368 792 18 2,609
- 9,831 1,360 1979 462 13,632
There was no arrangement under which a director FAMBEEEREXNRBERELN
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during A & BE (20184F : £&)
the year (2018: Nil).
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the FR - AEEYEMES T H M
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or ERMARSESMAREEZR
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss 152 [B) 3k 1E /& B Bt A9 #8 (B (20184 -
of office (2018: Nil). /) o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019

201912 A31H
The five highest paid employees of the Group included rEBRAEERTHEERE=RES
three (2018: three) directors. Details of the remuneration (2018F : ZR) - FAEENAATSE
of the five highest paid employees who are directors are S E BB E IS E N £ XX HIEES - 84
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the TYHFARARESTHEFEZTHAENM
remaining two (2018: two) highest paid employees who % (20185 I MA) & = & Bl {E 8 7 % B
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company BT

are as follows:

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits  #F % - 2B KB Y FIZ
in kind 1,963 1,959
Performance related bonuses 18 R S TE AT 140 298
Equity-settled share option expense #& %5 4% & B8 IR 7 FA 5% 94 396
Pension scheme contributions RS FEIHERK
(defined contribution schemes) (REHKETE) 36 36
2,233 2,689
The number of non-director and non-chief executive TN TUTSHEN TS IMES GEE
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the ENMEEEZTHAB) ABUOT :
following band is as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7Tt £1,500,0007% 7T 2 2
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31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

152

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, the
Group is not subject to any income tax in Bermuda.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the
year of assessment 2018/2019. The first HK$2,000,000 of
assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25%
and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.
Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the rate of 25% (2018: 25%).

Current — Hong Kong ey — &8
Charge for the year FAXH
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHBERE

Current — Mainland China BNER — R E A
Charge for the year FAXH
(Overprovision)/underprovision BEFE(GBEREE),

in prior years BETR

Deferred iR T

Total tax charge for the year FEREXEBFRNBIE
from continuing operations X 4%

Total tax charge for the year ERIEEBFAFIBES T
from a discontinued operation e
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B E RS BRI R
A EREREH -

AEBEHA

BEREMNESHDIBREBEFAEE BRI 2
=t FE 2R B 0% A E916.5% (20184 : 16.5% )
TR AEE—HENBARBRAE
T AL (B2018/M19:F B FEE A ) TH
EEREBEBRN-ZHWNBRAAFE
2,000,000 7T #) F& 3% B 4 Fll 128.25% #
i EERIERRTL R F AR 16.5% BBl o
B A Hh & ER A58 A1 2 B I8 T #225% (2018
F:25% )M EGFTEBE -

2019 2018
20194 20184

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHBxT FHET
11,675 10,633
(205) (41)

9,193 9,590

(502) 21
1,305 (795)

21,466 19,408

11 703 792
22,169 20,200



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019

2019412 A31H
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit FEREREAEMEFEZCHRBANRF 2
before tax at the Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax ERABIES L - Hiz E5EEERNET
charge at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows: BE2BBEIHZHEERT
2019 2018
2019% 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Profit before tax from continuing RESLEEBRBIR &R
operations 111,279 92,648
(Loss)/profit before tax from a B A% IE ETEBR AR Al
discontinued operation (B 18), % 7 (11,820) 5,032
99,459 97,680
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax 2 & B EE M R E M IA
rate 16,411 G HlE 7
Higher tax rate applied for specific 5 7F & 13 B 2k th /5 # B 5 7F
provinces or enacted by local R B =X
authority 3,895 3,582
Adjustments in respect of current %8 & HA & B HA %7 18 &9 9 =&
tax of previous periods (707) (59)
Income not subject to tax BARERA (310) (205)
Expenses not deductible for tax EIEE 5T 3,189 2,076
Tax losses utilised from previous ERBFHEMNHEEIE
periods (309) (1,700)
Tax losses not recognised RERTIBEBE - 389
Tax charge at the Group’s effective EAEBERH KA E T E
tax rate X 22,169 20,200
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31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

On 29 November 2019 (the “Date of Disposal”), the
Group disposed of its 60% equity interest in Whole Sun
Limited to its non-controlling shareholder of Whole Sun
Limited for a consideration of HK$27,840,000. Whole Sun
Limited is engaged in trading of frozen meat in Hong
Kong and the frozen meat business (the “Disposed
Frozen Food Business”) represented a major line of the
Group’s business in the Food Products segment for
operating segment information and the Disposed Frozen
Food Business was regarded as a discontinued operation.
The disposal is a part of the Group’s strategic plan to
redirect its resource to fit its business plan.

The results of the Disposed Frozen Food Business for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 (up to the Date
of Disposal) are presented below:

R2019F11 298 ([ E B #i]) - " &
BeEsZE S AR ARN— R IFERK
REEEREFHE S AR A A HI60%A%
¥ (B AB27,840,0008 T - B 5 HE
BAREEAENRSZRABES M
BABX(K((HEE2RRREL]) AN
EEN—EHFrZEEK - RAoHELE
SREMEESACDRIEEE - HES
HAAEBETARERATEEER
SHEMRBEETE — 2o e

H E2018%F K2019F 1231 H It F & (#
ZHEHHMEESREMELEER
FlanR

2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR THBT
Revenue WA 225,727 240,160
Cost of sales 35 & B A (207,537) (221,210)
Gross profit EF 18,190 18,950
Other income, net Hap e AJF 58 42 1
Selling and distribution expenses  $H& N 7 5 X (3,261) (3,118)
Administrative expenses THRAX (8,527) (8,379)
Other expenses, net H b B 52 75 58 (168) (930)
Finance costs &l & KA (1,043) (1,492)
Profit from the discontinued BB A
operation 5,233 5,032
Loss on disposal of the HEDKRIEEBER
discontinued operation (17,053) T
(Loss)/profit before tax from the BERIEEBBRE R (EE)
discontinued operation /i A (11,820) 5,032
Income tax expense Frgfi X (703) (792)
(Loss)/profit for the year from the B &R IFEBKER (FIB), % F)
discontinued operation (12,523) 4,240
Attributable to: AT AT RS :
Owners of the parent UNEIEZ Z=N (14,335) 2,544
Non-controlling interest FEVE AR M = 1,812 1,696
(12,523) 4,240
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019

201912 A31H
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Disposed REERBMHNESRREREENEER
Frozen Food Business disposed of as at the Date of BETEHEBWMT

Disposal are as follows:

29 November

2019
2019%F
11 H29H
Notes HK$'000
B & FAET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HEKRE 14 838
Goodwill kS 15 15,447
Intangible assets BEAE 17 500
Inventories e~y 29,144
Trade receivables B 5 W RIR 25,090
Prepayments, deposits and other TERRIE - He RHAMAmEY 14871
receivables KIE
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkBEeEEY 9,075
Assets disposed of BEHEEE 81,465
Liabilities EE
Trade payables 2 5 KRR (7,303)
Accruals and other payables FEFtE A & E i 3OIR (1,232)
Tax payable FES B IR (638)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITERK (7,361)
Lease liabilities 7TE EaE 26 (260)
Deferred tax liabilities BLEHIBEE 27 (147)
Liabilities disposed of EHEBE (16,941)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 64,524
Non-controlling interests FE 1 IR 2= (19,631)
Loss on disposal of a discontinued HEDRIEXEBEBE (17,053
operation
Satisfied by: BAR
Cash B 27,840

SEAFFR ERBERERARAG 155



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2019

2019412 A31H
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HHESREMEKNLESTENE S
in respect of the disposal of the Disposed Frozen Food FREEBMWERANSNTAT :
Business is as follows:
2019
2019
HK$’000
FHE T
Cash consideration BeRE 27,840
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEREMREEEYD (9,075)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of HE - B ARNIRS RIES

the disposal of a subsidiary EEBWFERA 18,765
The net cash flows incurred by the Disposed Frozen Food B 220185 20195 12A31H IEFE (B
Business for the years ended 31 December 2018 and EHERAR HESRRMEBKELENR
2019 (up to the Date of Disposal) are as follows: EMEFELAT

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Net cash flows from REXBHRIIRESNEFHE

operating activities 42,569 2,292
Net cash flows used in KEXBHAREREFHE

investing activities (26) (850)
Net cash flows used in MEXBAARSREFHE

financing activities (39,192) (8,746)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 3R& &IE & SEWEMN Chd)

cash equivalents F R 3,351 (2,304)
HK cents HK cents
AL Al

(Loss)/earnings per share from the B IF¥ES (EE) EF) :
discontinued operation:
Basic R (1.88) 0.36
Diluted 58 (1.87) 0.35
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The calculations of (loss)/earnings per share from the
discontinued operation are based on:

AHEERLEEBER(BR) /BFNNE

AE

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary 2 7] & @& EFH A RN
equity holders of the parent from & 1% (BE), % F
the discontinued operation (14,335) 2,544
’000 000
Weighted average number of ARFEEREARBINENR
ordinary shares in issue and BB RAIBITEERME
issuable during the year, used in 192 (Fff 5£13)
the basic earnings per share
calculation (Note 13) 762,931 707,571
Weighted average number of AR E T REE & A
ordinary shares, used in the LB AR hnAE T 15 B (M 7E13)
diluted earnings per share
calculation (Note 13) 764,302 709,308
ZENFFH RERBEBRZERBRAR 157



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The dividends proposed and declared by the Company
during the reporting period are as follows:

R

2019
20194
HK$’000
FE T

Dividends recognised as distribution k2 BifEl #E:R &9 Ik 2 % 8 ¢

during the reporting period:

2017 final dividend 2017F RHARR B
— HK1.62 cents per ordinary — BRETERKR.628U
share
2018 interim dividend 2018F H HAfR &
— HK1.31 cents per ordinary — BRI ®BAR1.318
share
2018 final dividend 2018F R HAMR 2
— HK5.78 cents per ordinary — BRI ®BARS.787 U
share
2019 interim dividend 2019F H HARR 2
— HK2.52 cents per ordinary — BREER&R2.528 U
share

44,066

19,245

63,311

Dividend proposed after the end of k& Bf R 18 B K [ AR B ¢

the reporting period:

Proposed final dividend BREAERE
— HK 3.33 cents (2018: HK — HRE®ARS.33% U
5.78 cents) per ordinary share (20184 : 5.787& 1)

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2019 has been calculated by reference to
753,565,912 shares in issue at 5 March 2020 and is
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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2018
20184
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FAT
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for
the year is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 762,931,000 (2018:
707,571,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
for the year is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise of all dilutive potential share options into ordinary
shares.

FANERERBMNDBES A EBE
B BABRLGRIRFAD BT AR
o ¥ S 15 #1762,931,0008% (20184 :
707,571,0008%) 5T B S H -

AEERBEERERDEREARE
BEDFB ARBEFARAMETE - %&T
B R E R E BN B AR AT
BEABREENFASHTEAR
8 URBREGIEITEZ LA HEE
EERESER S EARSEERTNE
BN S B
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

E'II_
il
m

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share FIRERREERF TR -

are based on:

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Earnings B F
Profit attributable to ordinary equity R stE & % & A& Z F 19
holders of the parent, used in the AREBEERITAA
basic earnings per share FEAE & F
calculation:
From continuing operations FELEET 89,813 73,240
From a discontinued operation B4R IFET (14,335) 2,544
75,478 75,784
’000 000
T T I
Shares & 12
Weighted average number of RAUFFEEREARABIOENRN
ordinary shares in issue and BT RAIBTEERME
issuable during the year, used in  FH#
the basic earnings per share
calculation 762,931 QST
Effect of dilution — weighted HERE — TERmE
average number of ordinary e
shares:
Share options i i 1 1,371 1,737
Weighted average number of AU EERESRT
ordinary shares, used in the B9 X 3 AR D0 T 19 2
diluted earnings per share
calculation 764,302 709,308
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019

2019412 A31H

31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

(note 2.2)

At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment

Addtions

Depreciation provided for the year

Disposals

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 11)
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment

At 31 December 2019;

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and

imparment

Net carrying amount

2019128318

20185127318 -
NRZHAERRE

FEAHBREER
Z165%MT 8 (H22)

Ro01951418

BB AERRE
RE
ERiRNE
iH&
HE-RHEAR (K1)
EXEE

R2019512A318 -
NREZHAAERAE

120195124318
AK
SHRERAE

Right-of-use assets

ERREE

Prepaid
land lease

BHLHAE
HK$'000
TET
(note (a))
(H&(a)

1318

1318

(392)

(229)

10,698

13,877

(3,179)

10,698

Leased
properties

BENE
HK$'000

TER
(note (b))
(B3k(b)

18240

18240
20,637
(11,267)

(258)
10

27,365

38,201

(10,926)

27,365

Total
&t

HK$'000
Tin

29,553

29,553
20637
(11,659)

(255)
(13)

38,063

52,168

(14,105)

38,063

Plant and

Buildings machinery
BE

B2 RE#
HK$'000 HK$000
TER TER
31,884 56,046
31,884 56,046
- 21,535
(1,452) (15,415)
- (323)

(556) (851)
29,876 62,192
50,646 155,793
(20,770) (93,601)
29,876 62,192
TN FEH

Owned assets

BRREE

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
GE BrE
ERZE
HK$'000
AT

10,211

10211
7,881
(3629)
@
(51)
87)

14,323

76,535

82212

14323

Motor
vehicles

hE

HKS$'000
Tén

3,642

3,642
1,47
(1,404)

(532
@

2,951

9,587

(6,636)

2,951

Total
&t

HKS$'000
Tz

102,683

102,683
30,663
(21,900)
(325)
(583)
(1,196)

109,342

202,561

(183,219)

109,342

RABEEBEZERERAR

Total
&t

HKS$'000
Tin

102,683

29,553

132,236
51,300
(33,559)
(325)
(838)
(1,409)

147,405

344,729

(197,324)

147,405
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

162

Notes:

Included in prepaid land lease of the Group’s right-of-use
assets (2018: prepaid land lease payments (note 15)) is a
piece of leasehold land (the “Leasehold Land”) situated in
Mainland China under collective-owned land ownership (£
B2 1 b {5 F) with a carrying value of HK$3,542,000 (2018:
HK$3,746,000). The Group also had items of property,
plant and equipment attached to the Leasehold Land (the
“Attached Properties”) amounting to HK$3,084,000 (2018:
HK$3,262,000). The Attached Properties, for which the
Group was authorised to obtain the real estate ownership
certificates, are mainly served as staff quarters of the
Group. To facilitate the Group’s future development plan,
the Group decided to apply to the relevant Mainland China
authorities to change the ownership type of the Leasehold
Land from collective-owned land ownership to state-
owned land ownership (B & L H#1{F F). In the prior years,
the Group commenced the necessary procedures to
change the ownership type of the Leasehold Land in
accordance with the Mainland China regulations and
returned the land use right certificate for the collective-
owned land ownership to the Mainland China government.

Up to the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Group continues to use the Leasehold Land and the
Attached Properties without objection from
authorities. In the opinion of directors, having considered
the legal advice from the Group’s PRC legal advisors, the
risk of having to relocate the Group’s operation from the
Leasehold Land is considered to be relatively low.

relevant

During the year ended 31 December 2019, right-of-use
assets included in property, plant and equipment were
reclassified from the prepaid land lease payments (note
15) upon adoption of HKFRS 16. Further details of which
are set out in note 2.2 above.

The Company leases certain of its offices, warehouses, staff
quarters. Leases for these assets are negotiated for terms
ranging from 2 to 4 years with extension or termination
options and all the lease payments are fixed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

31 December 2018

At 1 January 2018:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2018, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment

Additions

Depreciation provided for the year

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2018, net of
accumulated depreciation and
impairment

At 31 December 2018:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net carrying amount

2018%F12A31H

20181 A1A :
A
R E KR E

REFE

20181 A1R - Mk Rat
& RRE

NE

FARRTE

HE

B 31 38 2

M2018F 1283310 « Ik
RE T ERRE

H2018F12H318 :
B AR
BT ERRE

REFE

Included in the Group’s leasehold land and building were
two warehouses with carrying amount, before
accumulated depreciation, of RMB601,000 (equivalent to
HK$670,000) which the Group was not able to obtain the
corresponding real estate ownership certificate. The two
warehouses were fully depreciated during the year ended
31 December 2018.

Leasehold
land and
buildings

HE LT

KEgEF
HK$'000
TET

53,370

(18,401)

34,969

34,969

(1,619)

(1,566)

31,884

51,385

(19,501)

31,884

Furniture,
Plant and fixtures and Motor
machinery  equipment vehicles Total
BE &E- BE
R RERZE "E &t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT FHET FAT
139,227 70,946 8,306 271,849
(79,811) (60,503) (5,113) (163,828)
59,416 10,443 3,193 108,021
59,416 10,443 3,193 108,021
15,243 4,710 1,870 21,823
(15,026) (4,558) (1,408) (22,511)
(1,236) (116) = (1,352)
(1,451) (268) (13) (3,298)
56,946 10,211 3,642 102,683
143,213 71,372 9,191 275,161
(86,267) (61,161) (5,549) (172,478)
56,946 10,211 3,642 102,683

AEEMNHELIHEREFBERMBEAE
B AKRFATEEEDEARARK
601,0007T (8 & F670,0008 7T) * MAE
EARENSZERENEBEMEMA
BB B E2018F12831BLEE - MW
HEEEZHNE-
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31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

16.

164

15. AT HBEAEMAK

2019 2018

2019% 2018%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAET

Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1BMEREE 11,313 12,346
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RANE BV BREELFE165

(notes 2.2 and 14) B2 (i sE2.2K%14) (11,313) —
Carrying amount at 1 January MIA1BEMEREEE(KEEY)

(restated) - 12,346
Amortised during the year & R 5 - (409)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B - (624)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31B W EEE - 11,313
Less: Current portion B BNEAER 7 - (393)
Non-current portion JERNER B & - 10,920
GOODWILL 16. B &

HK$'000
FAT
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2018, MR2018F1H18 ~ 20184
at 31 December 2018 and at 1 January 2019 12 H431H &2019%F1 A1H
B B AN 2 AR DR B 15,447
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 11) HE— R BAR (HsE11) (15,447)

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2019 F20194F12 31 H M A A

Ko Bk # B
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

Goodwill arose from the Group’s acquisition of the frozen
food business in Hong Kong. Goodwill acquired through
business combination was allocated to the trading of
frozen foods cash-generating unit for impairment testing.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
recoverable amount of the trading of frozen foods cash-
generating unit had been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a three-year period approved
by management. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections was 15.0. The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the industrial products unit
beyond the three-year period was 1.5% which was the
same as the long term average growth rate of the trading
of frozen foods market.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
the trading of frozen foods cash-generating unit for 31
December 2018. The following described each key
assumption on which management had based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins was
the average gross margins achieved in the vyear
immediately before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements, and expected market
development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used were before
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible
changes in the key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount was based would not cause the relevant cash
generating unit’s carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount.

N Y

BEEAEBUBEBNIRRMER
EX BBEGAHMBHNBECHE
ESREMXZIRECELEM  UIER
BRI -

RE E2018F12A31B tFEE 2R R
RESBRSELEBEMNAKESETIR
BERAEETEET LUNHEREERERE
FrdtER = F RV BEEERBRE SR
EEANGE - FEARRESRER AR
WEA150 M-FEMNITEEMENIR
EMEBERAILSRMIBREHEE - HIR

ASTBEHNEBTIHEE—H -

T E2018F12A3THNZRRRE SR
CEABEMNTEREERERABRR -B
BEEAETHEREIARHTREESRE
ERAMEKEBE s SEETERZWOT ¢

BEENR — UERFREFERN 5/
BOFHEMNERER BEREEH
ZHEE BEENXEZBHORRN
E NS EREMIE N -

BEIRE — FTARMBRRTDHAARER X
RIREHBEMNAR 2 ERR -

EXZRA JHROESBEARENEER
REOEMAEAEES 9T SEHMN
MECEAEUMNEAEBHE T KD

T e
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

166

31 December 2019

Cost at 31 December 2018
and at 1 January 2019,

net of accumulated
amortisation

Amortisation provided during

the year

Disposal of a subsidiary

(note 11)

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2019:

Cost

Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

31 December 2018

Cost at 1 January 2018, net

of accumulated
amortisation

Amortisation provided during

the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2018:

Cost

Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount
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2019%12A31H

MR2018FE12A31H &

20191 A1H &Y
PR - 0Bk R EF
s
FNFHEE
HE—EKB AR
(M 3E11)

ME 3, 38 B

M2019%F12 831H

M2019%F12 A31H :

DN
Eg

BREH(E

2018%12A31H

R2018%1 A1H

B A - HIBR REH

B 3
F AR E

BE 54 98 B

20185F12H31H

M2018F12H31H :

[DRN
ENE 3

AR EF(E

Trademark
(GRS
HK$'000
THETT

540

(111)

(10)

419

1,093
(674)

419

1,116
(576)

540

Customer
relationship

BERE&
HK$'000
TAT

2,333
(1,833)

(500)

4,333

(2,000)
2,333
14,000

(11,667)

2,333

Total
At
HK$’000
BT

2,873

(1,944)

(500)
(10)

419

1,093
(674)

419

15,116
(12,243)

2,873



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019

2019412 A31H

2019 2018

2019% 2018%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAET

Raw materials R # & 62,176 71,009

Work-in-progress &M 1,082 533

Finished goods K & 62,490 134,253

125,748 205,795

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAET

Trade receivables g5 E W RIE 126,940 173,660

Impairment B E (8,085) (9,812)

118,855 163,848
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly AEEHERFPIIVZRPEREENU
on credit, except for new customers, where the Group EEAT EHRFHBEFTEEIHN
normally trades in cash on delivery. The credit periods b = /Hﬁ MR AES0E120Kk - BNEER
generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each customer has HREEREERE - AEBW &S
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain = KRB 1@ FEWFIA Wk EE BT
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a J\Zﬂ LRBREEERR -@BEASRERE
credit control team to minimise credit risk. Overdue BN AEBUYERHEEIREK
balances are reviewed regularly by management. The NEZBFEEMNERRIELEME

Group does not hold any collateral or other credit RiRHA - B 5 BB RIBIL TETE o

enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Ay

—J

\F\
NN
b

=7
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2019

2019412 A31H
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on the EORWRIE KRR DT (REZAHL
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: MR EBERETE BT :
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 30 days 30X A 63,637 104,818
31 to 60 days 31E60X 36,861 39,125
61 to 90 days 61E290K 10,556 11,414
91 to 120 days 912120k 3,970 6,570
121 to 180 days IS 8Os 1,261 102
Over 180 days B iE180K 2,570 909
118,855 163,848
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of EZRWGIBEREZSEREBESHNT
trade receivables are as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At beginning of year R E 9] 9,812 2,710
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 851 7,499
Impairment losses reversed BERERE (351) (103)
Amount written off as uncollectible %z 7~ 7] Y [B] i §4 &) 7X 38 (2,058) —
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHEB AR A (12) —
Exchange realignment fE 5, 38 & (157) (294)
At end of the year RER 8,085 9,812
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region and customer
type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. During the vyear, the
expected loss rate for certain customers that are credit-
impaired are assessed specifically by management. For
other trade receivables aged more than one year past due
but not credit-impaired, management has not observed
objective evidence of financial difficulties of the debtors
and has been taking credit risk mitigating measures. Set
out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

RERESBHOEARBEEEETRE
At M EEHEEEE BEXDE
REAREEEUEBEEEANZEARTFR S
HETHOMABIMESEEEFER) M
BB EE A ERBEIAE
MEER EBFERAHREBHBAE
NEBRATSEE EABRGRRREE
BHEANEERAEZER -FAR - &T
EEFHEAEEXE(EEERE) IHE
BE@EBFMG SafBeE —FEER
EERENEMESRKNIE  EEE
W ABRINEREZEEEEBEHRARY
BRELREDEETFERE - BELRE
ERRAREEETENE S ERFKIEYN
SERRBERHINET

provision matrix:

Expected Gross
credit loss carrying Expected
rate amount credit loss
FHEE EHEE
BE=E RE#E &8
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FER
2019 20194
Credit impaired receivables 15 B &l (B fE I 5K 1B 100.00% 6,993 6,993
Other trade receivables EME S JE Wk IE
aged: Z R ¢
Within 30 days 30K A 0.55% 114,634 631
31 to 60 days 31E60XK 1.72% 1,919 33
61 to 90 days 61Z290K 4.04% 470 19
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 6.34% 725 46
121 to 180 days 121E180K 8.25% 206 17
Over 180 days @180k 17.36% 1,993 346
126,940 8,085
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2019

2019412 A31H
Expected Gross
credit loss carrying Expected
rate amount credit loss
FEHEE EHEE
ET1E = BB #®E Eia
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET BT
2018 20184
Credit impaired receivables 1= B Jil (B & W 7 B 100.00% 9,094 9,094
Other trade receivables H 2 5 EWFIE
aged: 2 BRHER
Within 30 days 30K A 0.02% 159,110 31
31 to 60 days 31 260K 0.60% 2,495 15
61 to 90 days 61290k 0.66% 988 7
91 to 120 days 91E120K 0.74% 246 2
121 to 180 days V2ZIES 0% 2.29% 189 4
Over 180 days B #8180k 42.85% 1,538 659
173,660 9,812
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T FHET
Deposits Ze 3,286 2,780
Prepayments TET K IE 12,615 18,644
Other receivables H e W IR 1,975 1,972
17,876 23,396
Less: Non-current portion B JERNEREE (5,024) (3,819)
Current portion BN HA &6 5 12,852 19,577
The financial assets included in the above balances relate FFALMESRN SR E EBT B &
to receivables for which there was no recent history of REg kT EaHARENEKRKIES
default and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2019 B8 - 20194 K&2018512831H » & B
and 2018, the loss allowance was assessed to be BETERML -
minimal.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

Cash and bank balances Be RIBITHE S
Time deposits 7 B 17 K
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBSEEY

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$54,490,000 (2018: HK$55,801,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Certain cash at banks earns interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time
deposits are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest and the
respective short term time deposits rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

Ay

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHE T
174,923 188,632
140,288 140,052
315,211 328,684

RBEHR AEBUARKTENR
& K iR 17 & 8 2 Bl B54,490,0007% JT
(2018%F : 55,801,000 7L) ° A R ¥ T EE
BRABEMER A BEFER
RICHNE B IBAKHI) RCKEE - B & KT E
EEHATE) ASBEEABBERERE
INEXBNIEIT BARBHLBAEHMD

ETROTRESRESRRITHFERMN R
FREREA R - EHERERNTFRY
SIBEEATE  BRFEAKEHNKHREE
FRME @ Wi E BB HE TR =R
REAME - |RITERDEFRREER
AL EA Y B 3B #) RO SR RO ERTT ©
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Trade payables 2 5 N RIE
Bills payable FE I E

172

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables based
on the invoice date is as follows:

Within 1 month 116 A A
1 to 2 months 12 21E A
2 to 3 months 2Z3fE A
Over 3 months 8 1B31E A

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within 30 to 60 days. The bills payables
had a maturity period of 120 days.
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2019 2018
2019% 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER TAET
73,567 89,398
- 1,842
73,567 91,240

L ZEMNZEREMNER ZR®R DT (R
BFEAE)MT

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
70,653 89,118
2,010 1,050

3 62

901 1,010
73,567 91,240

BHRMNKEAELSRE N —RNI0E0K
NAERN - BN REZHHAR /120K -
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31 December 2019

2019412 A31H
Accruals fEzt 18
Contract liabilities adaE
Other payables H b pE < FhoE

Notes:

Contract liabilities represent advance payments received
from customers from the Beverage Solutions segment for
the Group to deliver the tea products. The increase in the
contract liabilities is mainly attributed to the demand of the
tea products during the year.

The amount of revenue to be recognised in the current
reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period amounted to
HK$755,000 (2018: HK$2,676,000)

Movements in contract liabilities during the year are as
follows:

At the beginning of the year R EFE A
Additions NE

Revenue recognised during the year F R R R
At the end of the year RER

The transaction prices allocated to remaining performance
obligation (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) which is
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year as
at 31 December 2019 amounted to HK$1,399,000 (2018:
HK$755,000).

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

2019 2018

20195 20184

Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt E TER FET
44,281 42,001

(@) 1,399 755
(b) 5,174 7,148
50,854 49,904

B 5E -

(a) AHEBEERAEBIMNRERMME
ﬁAﬁiuHEW’\*EE'J%:)EWHHEH%UE o
AHNBEEENEEHRFALERS
;ﬁ °
ERREHESEROKESEGIA
wEBYMNE L EE) B755000% T
(20184 : 2,676,000 ) °
FRNAHEBENEZNT

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

755 2,676

2,644 2,609

(2,000) (4,530)

1,399 755
@Ez‘éﬁ%TEi’]fﬁEE’J X5 E (KX
DPEATMORSERIEEHER —
i ME;’JJ%WE » FA20195F12 A31H =
1,399,000/ 7T (20184F : 755,000 7T) ©

b) EMENMZKBETHE X FHHRAE=
@A -
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i

o)

:
)

\

N
AE

o

Forward currency contracts R H

The Group has entered into various forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures. These
forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge
purposes and are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging currency
derivatives amounting to HK$573,000 (2018: Nil) were
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year.
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Liabilities
=i
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
568 4

AEBEUREERELSHNUER
HEZRR ZE2HIINESDOREE
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31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25. :t B8 {T7ME

2019 2018
20195 20184F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 rate (%) Maturity HK$’'000
BERFI= BB A %
(%) Z 8 A THER (%) HEA FHET
Current B 5
Trust receipt loans = MIRE R
— unsecured — EH 3.39-3.64 2020 26,154 2.85-3.87 2019 81,603
Bank loans — unsecured BITER — EEHA On demand

- - — §92:85-2190 REX 49,400
Current portion of long term bank £ HI4R 17 & BN HA

loans — unsecured Bo — BEE - - - 3.10 2019 8,000
26,154 139,003
Non-current JFEN
Bank loans — unsecured RAER — BEH - - - 3.10 2020-2021 17,217
26,154 156,220
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Analysed into: DA
Within one year —F R 26,154 139,003
In the second year REZF - 8,000
In the third to fifth years, BT s ey
inclusive (BIEEEMSE) - 9,217
26,154 156,220
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The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FAHEEGENREELRZHERNOT :
movements during the year are as follows:

2019
20194
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FERT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1EMEREE 2.2 18,240
New leases FHEE 20,637
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 4 A # 3R A F B 1 A0 990
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHEBR A i (260)
Payments N (11,942)
Exchange realignment B H B 10
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31B W EREE 27,675
Analysed into: DR -
Current portion B HA &6 14,966
Non-current portion JEBDHR &L o 12,709
27,675
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to REREREEEFENSENAT :
leases are as follow:
2019
20194
HK$’000
FERT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 990
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FTRAEEETES D 11,942
Expense relating to short-term leases BT HEHEE2019F12A831H
with remaining lease terms ended on A EHEER X
or before 31 December 2019 3,830
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBE MR A B &R 16,762
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31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows:

At 1 January 2018

Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 10)

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2018 and at
1 January 2019

Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 10)

Disposal of a subsidiary

(note 11)

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019

»2018%1A1H

REARFIS/GEA)
GEBRAERIET

T8 (B 5E10)

b

o]

R2018%F12H318 Kk

20191 A1H

REAFIS/(GEA)
GEBRARET

i 18 (i 3E10)

HE—FHERF

(ffEE11)
P 3 3 &

72019%F12A31H

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related
depreciation
mERHE
BABRETE
HK$’000
FAET

3,967

1,470
(61)

5,386

1,009

(66)
(34)

6,295

\F\
RN

Ay

—J

EXHAEBBEREERFALZ

Fair value
adjustment
arising from
acquisition

of a business
WBEBELE
WAFEAE
HK$’000
FAT

715

(330)

385

(302)

(83)

i)

RS
<Q

EHMT -

Total

&t
HK$'000
FiET

4,682

5,771

707

(149)
(34)

6,295
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At 1 January 2018

Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 10)

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2018 and at
1 January 2019

Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 10)

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 11)

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019

#2018F1 A1H

RERGIX)/FA
LEBERZEL
B8 (M E10)

B 5. 30 B

#2018 12A31A &
201941818
RERGIZ)/FA
BAEBRRZEE
B (fE10)
HE—RHE AR
GED
EHAR

R2019F12831H

Depreciation
in excess of
related
depreciation
allowance
nEER
BRTE
EHE
HK$'000
FERT

(1)
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Allowance for

Losses
available
for offsetting

doubtful against future

debts taxable profits

RIERE
HK$'000
THET

16

2,153
81)

2,088

(73)

@
#1)

1,972

A AR 8
R IR BB B
b ¥ilbd F |
HK$'000
TEL

166

(166)

Unrealised
profit
resulting from
intragroup
transactions
SEAARM
RIEE
ZRERER
HK$'000
FET

486

201

687

(206)

481

Total

att
HK$'000
it

678

2,186
(81)

2,783

(280)

@
#1)

2,460



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

BREIME ETEERREERERE
ERMBMRARAEE - AHBREM
CAEENEEHBAGEHRITAOT

=

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FAET
Net deferred tax liabilities AR & BT AR R BE a8 B R AT
recognised in consolidated MIEBEFE
statement of financial position (6,295) (5,771)
Net deferred tax assets recognised 4R & B 75 ik it 3K 78 52 B0 IR i&
in consolidated statement of MIBEEFHE
financial position 2,460 2,783
(3,835) (2,988)

The Group has unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$25,969,000 (2018: HK$27,842,000), subject
to the agreement by relevant tax authorities, that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. As at
31 December 2018, the Group has fully utilised tax losses
arising in Mainland China, which were subject to
agreement by relevant tax authorities, that will expire in
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

Ay

AEBREBEENABRBEBEAR
25,969,000/ 7T (20184 : 27,842,000/
TE(ELEBEHRBEKEARZ %5 AE
E) AIERBAEHRELEBEZAR
Z AR PR FE ER B A o 2018512 A31
B AEEEEXEIARPRHAMES
WHEEE (AL HEETBRER Z&5
AEE) EBRAFAER ] ANRIE
HEB BB AR ZRKERT AT o

RABEEBEZERERAR 179

<Q

i)

\F\
RN
RS

—J



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

180

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the Mainland China Corporate Income Tax
Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised amounted to
approximately HK$80,736,000 and HK$62,019,000 at 31
December 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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o OAREEARENENHRER - AEEH
HEARERI1I0% - At - AEEEHRZS
P R B A K S B9 BT B S B 5E20084F1 A
1RREENAEFFDIRMNKREZMNTEN
i o

20194 K&20185F12A31H - #f & 5t &
& B 5 AR Bt Bk S A BT BB R BB B AR
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31 December 2019

2019412 A31H
2019 2018
2019% 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Authorised: ERE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,0000% & i%
HK$0.10 each E {H0.107% T H) & B AR 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETEERE
763,937,312 (2018: 762,071,112) 763,937,312%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (20184 : 762,071,112/%) & %
M {E0.107%8 7T B T 38 A% 76,394 76,207
A summary of movements in the Company’s authorised RRARKEERDETRAZESHH 2 10
and issued share capital is as follows: T
Number of
shares Share capital
R E &N
Notes HK$'000
B 5% TAET
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2018, R2018F1A18 »
at 31 December 2018, 720185128318 -
at 1 January 2019 and M2019F1 A18 &
at 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRER
At 1 January 2018 7201841 A1H 617,750,000 61,775
Issue of shares under initial BEERARAEERTRG
public offering (@ 142,109,312 14,211
Issue of shares upon exercise TEBRERZTRG
of share options (b) 2,211,800 22|
At 31 December 2018 and at 2018128310 Kk
1 January 2019 720191 /1R 762,071,112 76,207
Issue of shares upon exercise of 77 {F B& M #E B B2 1T AR D
share options (o) 1,866,200 187
At 31 December 2019 2019124318 763,937,312 76,394
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H
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Notes:

(@)

In connection with the Company’s initial public offering,
106,229,312 ordinary shares of par value HK$0.10 each
were issued at a price of HK$1.98 per share for a total
cash consideration, before share issue expenses, of
approximately HK$210,334,000. Dealing in the Shares on
the Stock Exchange commenced on the Listing Date.

On 8 June 2018, the Company issued additional
35,880,000 ordinary shares of par value HK$0.10 each at
the price of HK$1.98 per share for a total
issue expenses, of
approximately HK$71,042,000 as a result of exercise of
over-allotment options by the underwriters.

cash

consideration, before share

During the year, the subscriptions right attaching to
1,866,200 (2018: 2,211,800) share options were exercised
at the subscription price of HK$0.594 per share, resulting
in the issue of 1,866,200 (2018: 2,211,800) ordinary
shares of par value of HK$0.10 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,109,000 (2018:
HK$1,313,000). An amount of HK$3,440,000 (2018:
HK$4,147,000) was transferred from the share option
reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise
of the share options.
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B 2%

RAARABRABHBEEMS:
106,229,312/% & IR HE {8 £0.10/4 T /) I
BRI FAR1.98B T B8 31T W EL
BEHeREAE(NKRRBRMHEBEITHAIA)
#9210,334,000/ 7T » J&fH B3 L H B8
EHRXAARES -

R2018F6A8H ' AN BIEMEmITFERBE
Be A% 4+ AN A B 1R B R%1.987 T M (B 1%
8 41 2% 1735,880,0000% & A% M & A0.10
BT RARKR YHRABESREAEE
(30 Bk AR 19 2 77 B 2 AT) 4971,042,0007%8%

JG °©

B K F E - 1,866,2001 (20184 :
2,211,8001n) BB AR HEBE T M R IB R &
B%0.594 8 LT - BHEITEREE
0.10% Jt #J1,866,2000% (20184 :
2,211,8008%) Ei@AR « R3IRSRAE (FBk
B X A1)1,109,000% JT (20184 :
1,313,000/ JT) ° 3,440,000/ Jt (2018
F 1 4,147,000/ 7T) B SR IE PR 1T 50 8 IR
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2019412 A31H

AR BRAFE R EAFENRFERE
REBBRETEBBENRA R Z B
RED -

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes
pages 87 to 88.

in equity on

Pursuant to the written resolution of the then sole
shareholder of the Company dated 25 August 2017,
the Company reallocated its share premium account
to the contributed surplus by way of reduction of the
entire amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account to nil and transfer of the credit
amount arising from the share premium reduction to
the contributed surplus.

Pursuant to the relevant Mainland China rules and
the subsidiaries which are domestic
in Mainland China are required to
transfer no less than 10% of their profits after
taxation, as determined under Mainland China
accounting regulations and their respective articles of
association, to the reserve funds until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before the
dividend distribution to shareholders.

regulations,
enterprises

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
share capital when the related options are exercised,
or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.
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\F\

RIEA R A H B — AR R2017F
8ASHBBEMEEMARER - AQA]
BEBROZERETIREBAR
B FRAABRMDEERZZ2IE
REeFEARES WK EE RKRG
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B o

1895 5 B 79 o 5 R R U SR AR - 1
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BARMA RIS R10%H B
BEHFIFIARBARS  EER
8 4 #3151 D B A 950% o It 2
T 2 4R R 1 R 3R TR PR B
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184

Exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
currency exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

The Group’s other reserve represents the difference
between the amounts by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid to acquire additional interest in a
subsidiary.

The Company operates a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively, the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The
principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
similar to the terms of the Share Option Scheme except
that (i) no further options could be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme prior to the Listing Date;
and (ii) the exercise price and the exercise period of the
share options are different as further detailed below.

Eligible participants of the Schemes include the
Company’s executive directors and other employees of
the Group. The Scheme were approved and adopted on
15 December 2017 (“Adoption Date”). The Share Option
Scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from the Listing Date.

In the prior years, the Company granted options to

certain employees to subscribe for 9,000,000 shares of
the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share Option
Schemes is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the Listing
Date. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Share Option Schemes within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

issued and

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates would result in the total number of
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings of the
Company.

A

B REBRET S A RO KRITER
BREETERMSEORNEE &%
MERARBR LHBEHAEHITREO K
10% » REM12ME A BERIEERED
HOARTTREREASINERAER
SEENENEE REZITHEEBARQ
AR R A B TR 1% o EfA#E
— F R Ot IR R B A R A A X
RAE LHSHRRALE -

AARARAESE THAEHINEEBRRNK
ERAREHEARLBERE BEEH
SEIIERITESRE o I WMEAR
A EERRIBUIFATES LR
EBMBARDOTABERE  SREX
NAREBEREAS D REAHR L
PrERKREETERNBEZR LA
AIE(BRER)OEMAI2EABEE 3
THREBTTZBALTOROD LK &
BARBIRNEMAEECD ETRMDN0.1%
FRARBBOHRE L BB HESE
MEEBEBEES BT MIASFENK
RAE LASBRELE-

BEEITHTITHBEAZTAEREINA
NABRRAREGREROROER -
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The offer of a grant of share option under the Share
Option Scheme may be accepted within 7 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme is
determinable by the directors, and ends on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options. The exercise price of share options under
the Share Option Scheme is determinable by the
directors, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
offer of the share options, which must be a business day;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, no

options have been granted or agreed to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The exercise price of share options under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is HK$0.594 per share and the
share options are exercisable commencing on the day
faling on the Listing Date and ending on the day
immediately before the third anniversary of the Listing
Date.

The following share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme were outstanding during the year:

At 1 January »W1A1H

Granted during the year REREL
Exercised during the year RERTTE
Forfeited during the year REF R8I
At 31 December M12A31H

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised for the year ended 31
December 2019 was HK$1.37 (2018: HK$1.82) per share.

REBXAREERBRETS - BK
BT EE S ER05948 T - BBAE
ARETEHMEREEEER EHEH
m=EER BT -

FRN - REERAF R E R B RES S
ERHERRITENBBRENT

2019 2018
2019 20184

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
R 8 IR R In#E Rk
FHYTREE BB FTHIEE 2H

HK$ per HK$ per

share share

BRET &8 T

0.594 6,192,600 i T

0.594 - 0.594 9,000,000
0.594  (1,866,200) 0.594 (2,211,800)
0.594 (772,600) 0.594 (595,600)
0.594 3,553,800 0.594 6,192,600

RNE E2019F12A31B LEE - B 171
BREARTEBEHNNETLTEHREAE
A%1.377% 7T (20184 : 1.82/& 1) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019

201912 A31H
Particulars of the Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option R2019F12H31H " T A AR BITE
Scheme granted to the Company’s executive directors ERAEEEMEENBERARAEEH
and other employees of the Group as at 31 December BREGINFEHINDOT -

2019 are set below:

As at Exercised Forfeited As at
1 January during the during the 31 December
Grantee Date of grant  Exercise price 2019 year year 2019  Exercise period
20195 20195
ARA REAH %@ 1R1A ERTR FRREK 128318 fTfRH
Executive directors
HTES
Mr. Wu Kam On Keith 19 April 2018 HK$0.594 412,800 ¥ P 412,800 11 May 2019 to 10 May 2020
PRRF 4 2018F4A19A 05947 T 201954118 £2020658108
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 550,400 i o7 550,400 11 May 2020 to 10 May 2021
201848198 059478 1T 2020F5R 113 £2021F5510H
Ms. Fan Yee Man 19 April 2018 HK$0.594 275,400 (275,400) 5 — 11 May 2019 to 10 May 2020
B EHUME 201848 19H 059478 T 2019F5811H £2020F5510H
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 367,200 i T 367,200 11 May 2020 to 10 May 2021
201848198 059478 1T 2020F5R 110 £2021F5510H
Other employees 19 April 2018 HK$0.594 405,000 (337,400) (37,600) 30,000 11 May 2018 to 10 May 2019
HitES 2018%F4F19H 05947 1T 2018%F5R11H £2019F5510A
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 1,792,200 (1,253,400) (115,800) 423,000 11 May 2019 to 10 May 2020
201848198 059478 1T 2019F5R 110 £2020F5510A
19 April 2018 HK$0.594 2,389,600 o (619,200) 1,770,400 11 May 2020 to 10 May 2021
2018%F4F19H 059478 1T 2020F5R 110 £2021F5510H
The Group recognised an equity-settled share option RE E2019F12A31B tFEE - A&
expense of HK$2,443,000 (2018: HK$7,405,000) during T 58 A% M 45 15 B8 IR 1 B 32.2,443,0007% 7T
the year ended 31 December 2019. (2018%F : 7,405,000/ 7T) °
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M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2018 was estimated as at the date
of grant using a binomial model, which was subject to a
number of assumptions and with regard to the limitation
of the model, and taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The
inputs to the model used included (i) dividend yield of
2.5%; (ii) expected volatility of 32.69% to 40.18%; and (iii)
risk-free interest rate of 1.56% to 2.04%. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility
is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessary be the actual outcome. No other feature of the
options granted was incorporated into the measurement
of fair value.

The 1,866,200 share options exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 2,211,800) resulted in
the issue of 1,866,200 (2018: 2,211,800) ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.10 each and new share capital
of HK$187,000 (2018: HK$221,000), as further detailed in
Note 28.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 3,553,800
share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 3,553,800
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$355,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 3,007,200 share options outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 0.40% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.

A

H ZE2018F 128318 L FE - BEEH X
ARABENBERESS RO UARES
ENEREOLAFEITRELE AU
BARNX (REAEFETRERBHAER
B RIR) I 48 & R B IR A o0 G 3k R 1§
HELEF RXMANGE ASE2E
() B R25% : (i)f8 8 & 1832.69% =
4018% : K(i)E B B F E1.56%=
2.04% o T8 B 8 f= B 38 13 R 08 3R R R 2R
BENBR  TRLUREBRER 2R
TERTEMADELBRESHE MR
=

& E2019F12A318 It F E > 17
1,866,20017 (20184 : 2,211,80017 ) B& A%
OB B % 171,866,2000% (20184 :
2,211,800/%) & ix EI1E0.1078 LAY AN A A
T @R W E £ F IR A<187,0008 T
(20184 : 221,000/ 7T) (40 B} FE28FT &
—FFFu) o

2019 12A31H - AR AR E B XA
A 3% & A 8 IR 7 51 81 B 3,553,80017 B8 AR
ERETE - BREARANBRTEARSE
B 2ETEMRTENERESER
%8 M8 773,553,800 A A &) E @ A% - I
A 9N EE 4 % ZAN355,0007% JT (K 5+ % 17 H
%) e

AR AL EHBEHREBE  AQFR
BEEeXA AR EBERETEE
3,007,20017 B AR BE 18l R 1T - HE R A
AR ZA BT’ £0.40% °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of HK$20,637,000 and
HK$20,637,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for premises (2018: Nil).

H 20196128318 It EE - A&
EmmEnBEELEES I ESER
BEEMMEABNIERESAE
20,637,000% 7T }%20,637,000% 7T
(2018%F : &) »

The table below details the cash flows and non-cash TREF@AEAEERERETE
changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from MEEMRERERIERSES -

BRRTIXEEESIN  AEEXER
BRPNBEMENFRSES -

financing activities. Except as disclosed below, there
were no non-cash changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities.

Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
=)
RITER HEAR &5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET
At 31 December 2018 2018128318 156,220 - 156,220
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RRAB ARG %R
F16HFNTE - 18,240 18,240
At 1 January 2019 (restated) 7201941818 (B E35) 156,220 18,240 174,460
Financing cash flows MERERE (122,664) (11,942) (134,606)
Non-cash changes FE+EE
New leases HHE - 20,637 20,637
Accretion of interest M BERE - 990 990
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 11) HE K B2 A (B sE11) (7,361) (260) (7,621)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates Exgeng s (41) 10 (31)
At 31 December 2019 2019128318 26,154 27,675 53,829
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

rEREREBERMEE(E)

(b) REMETBDNEEHEE (&)

2018 20184
Interest-
bearing
bank
borrowings
SFERITEN
HK$'000
FTAT
At 1 January 2018 201841 A18 191,559
Financing cash flows REREME (35,321)
Non-cash changes HHEEE
Effect of changes in foreign exchange HNEEREE T E
rates (18)
At 31 December 2018 R2018412A318 156,220
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31 December 2019
2019412 A31H
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During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, the
Group was not able to obtain the real estate ownership
certificate for two warehouses located in the Mainland
China (note 14). As the Group completed the
construction of the relevant warehouses and commenced
usage without obtaining the necessary construction
planning permit and construction commencement permit
prior to the construction and did not complete the filing of
the necessary construction completion reports with the
relevant authorities, the Group may be requested by the
relevant authorities to demolish the construction and is
subject to a maximum penalty amounting to
RMB1,321,000 (equivalent to HK$1,473,000) (31
December 2018: RMB1,321,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,504,000)). On 15 December 2017, the Group
obtained a temporary construction permit for a period of
two years for one of the warehouses. Having considered
the recent approval of the temporary construction permit
of the warehouse and the current application status of the
temporary construction permit of the remaining
warehouse which is currently being processed by the
relevant authorities and the advice from the Group’s legal
counsel, the directors believe that it is not probable that
the relevant authorities will impose the penalty.
Accordingly, no provision for the relevant liability has been
made.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI 4 E R B
Property, plant and equipment M BB NEE

The Group leased certain of its warehouses and
offices under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties were negotiated for terms ranging
from one to four years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

Within one year —F RN

AEBRBEHERE 5 E AN
% :
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT FHEIT
6,193 615

AEERBELEHELZHERET
RERBAE -MEHELHERR
HNF—=mE-

MR2018F12831H * A& BB BT
AREEEEY s RRKER SR
HBBE BB ROT

2018
20184
HK$'000
FAET

11,905

In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEAF(RREEMSE) 9,415

21,320
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31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and Rt FP G mKH Mo e a)
balances detailed elsewhere in these financial Ry RERERIN RER - K
statements, the Group had the following SEEBED S TIREILAGE
transactions based on terms mutually agreed terms MIRRETHRS

with related parties during the year:

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 F& T FET
Lease expenses/rental MEABH A NHEE
expenses paid to a related X feRX
company (i) 1,860 1,860
Purchase from Guangzhou A & N 38 08 5 R R
Dandy Don’s Ice Cream BRAR(TEMTH
Factory Co Ltd. (“GZDD”) &) 1 BB AR (ii) - 99
Notes: Bt 7
() Mr. Wong Tat Tong (“Mr. Wong”), a director and the (i) RATEERERRREEER
beneficial shareholder of the Company, is the F(EEE]D) BZEBEB A AHN
controlling shareholder of these related companies. PERRAR R o
(i)  Mr. Wong disposed of his shareholding interest in iy =WERAEREE2018F12A318 1
GZDD during the year ended 31 December 2018 FEHEEREMTEENFR
and any purchase from GZDD subsequent to the Hzm o MAZLEEREMNSE

EEH R ERRBEL S TEBKA
SENBEBIRS -

disposal do not constitute related party transactions
of the Group.

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Short term employee benefits HEEBERA 14,487 16,066
Equity-settled share option expense LA RS # 45 & 1) B8 A BT X2 895 2,891
Pension scheme contributions RARSFrEIMHR

(defined contribution schemes) (REHRETED 409 540
15,791 19,497

Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s AREEFERETETHENTH M

remuneration are disclosed in note 8 to the financial
statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019

2019512 A31H
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEEHER SE2RTANKREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period wm

are as follows:

Loans and receivables

BEXRREKRRE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 118,855 163,848
Financial assets included in FTATEN IR - Re R EMER
prepayments, deposits and other FHIBEH & REE
receivables 4,845 4,752
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEED 315,211 328,684
438,911 497,284
As at 31 December 2019 7A2019F12H31H
Financial
liabilities at
fair value Financial
through liabilities at
profit amortised
or loss cost Total
BRATE
FTABREN BB
tHERSE ENSHAER et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FTHEx FTHxT
Derivative financial instruments #7444 @ T & 568 - 568
Trade and bills payables B S ENFIER
JE 1t 58 - 73,567 73,567
Financial liabilities included in T ARERTFRIE R H
accruals and other payables ERNRENCRAE - 35,149 35,149
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t 2 8 17 & &% - 26,154 26,154
568 134,870 135,438
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2019412 A31H
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As at 31 December 2018

Trade and bills payables

BHRNREBRENREE

M2018F12H31H

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REHKARTE
NEmaRE
HK$'000

THT

91,240

Financial liabilities included in accruals and other =t A J& &t 718 & H fih & 1+ 3k 18

payables
Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities
included in accruals and other payables, current portion of
interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments or the effect of discounting is not
material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of deposits and
interest-bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using the
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The Group entered into derivative financial instruments
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
Derivative financial instruments, including forward currency
contracts, were measured using valuation techniques
similar to forward pricing model, using present value
calculations. The model incorporated various market
observable inputs including the credit quality of the
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates
and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward
currency contracts were the same as their fair values.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

AREBRTHPTEEZNRENEERLY
RITAIMTEERIAEAN - TESR
TE(BRENEEGN RAAEE
AEBUEHAEREAGBERNAE -
ZEAMAZETIG A BREGEARE
BRXZUFNEELER -INEANHK
EHERRANEHR - ZHEEAON
FREEEEEFEMER -

TESAAEELRIANDTENE
B

Fair value measurement using

AFEBESA

Quoted prices
in active
markets
BT S
HRE

(Level 1)
(5—18)
HK$’000
FET

Derivative financial instruments #T4 & @ TA S

The Group did not have any financial assets measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured
at fair value as at 31 December 2018.

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2018: Nil).

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
BEXATEE EATTEE
BARE BARE

(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(=) (F=R) # et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET FHET
568 7 568

201912 A31H » 7 & B I £ £ ] LA
NEEFENEMEE (2018F : ) °

RE B PR2018F12A31B W E T ML A
FEFAENERBEE -

FR - F-EBEF_EHRABEEEAQ

FEFAE BEE=-"ETEEAHLELS
MEENMEBAE(20185F : &) °
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The Group’s principal financial instruments include cash
and cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating
interest rates. Management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings).

2019 20194
HK$ BT
HK$ BT
RMB AR
RMB AR
2018 20184
HK$ BT
HK$ BT
RMB AR
RMB AR

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by
operating wunits in currencies other than the unit’s
functional currencies. The majority of the Group’s foreign
currency purchase transactions are denominated in US$.
On the other hand, the sales and disbursements are
mainly denominated in HK$ and RMB. As HK$ is pegged
to US$, the Company does not anticipate significant
movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rates and the
exposure on foreign currency risk is not material.

A

TRHAAERE EAM

BEMFTE

(=P

T REBRB DG N MRS IEA]
REESNHRE CBBYTEERITERN

B/ %8B
TR o

Increase/
(decrease) in
basis points
BE A
(T r&)

50

(50)
50

(50)

AEBEHBKRR S EEE
EHNEEEMARD

Increase/
(decrease) in
profit before
tax

MR B B0 R
2, Ol 2)
HK$’000
FBT

45

(45)
52

(52)

(593)
593
87
(87)

LA oy YAGAN
w oz ERRE

RREBNIINZE

BETEEMEL AKBEAHLAIE
REXZUXTAE S—FTH  #HER
XHMNEBUBETMARKEFTE R
BITEETHE  AARRHAXTHLE
TTHEXRY A EHREAEE  TEER

B INEE @ B I N EE K o
— L FFH
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The Group’s risk management principles with regard to its
foreign currency denominated monetary assets, liabilities,
commitments, and cash flows is to match as far as
possible the values of such assets and cash flows against
similarly denominated liabilities and cash flows. Decisions
on either holding net short or long positions in foreign
currency denominated monetary assets or liabilities are
taken on case-by-case basis and by taking into
consideration the amount and duration of the expenses,
market volatility, economic trends and requirements of the
business.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the Swiss Franc (“SFR”) and RMB exchange rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax.

2019 2019%F

fisd 35 78 7 3 i R B2 (B
i % 78 7T 3. 3w RE 7+ (B

If HK$ weakens against SFR
If HK$ strengthens against SFR
If HK$ weakens against RMB
If HK$ strengthens against RMB

2018 20184

fied 25 78 7T 3L 3 BB B2 (B
i % 78 7T 3. 35 RE 7+ (B

If HK$ weakens against SFR
If HK$ strengthens against SFR
If HK$ weakens against RMB
If HK$ strengthens against RMB
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(5%) 84

5% 541
(5%) (541)

5% (133)

(5%) 133

5% 5)

(5%) 5



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The tables below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification

AEEEERLRABEERYNE=F
ETTR 7 - ARBRRBAE  PRBRIRGE
ENETRINER HARXEER
B2 o O NEBEREEREUGR
Eer YEBSBBERNAZERER -

TRITBREAEENEERRNEER
BXELHMEERRMES KRR
FTENCBRNENRKE (FRIEAEM
BHMBAERBZRARE ) UK
RI2ABIENFERA R -BEREBR

as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross NEeREERBDAEARE -

carrying amounts for financial assets.

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A %
FEBE PHENEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£-R EZR E=H it 5% @t

HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR TR TR T T

Trade receivables* 2 S rWHIE - - - 126,940 126,940
Financial assets included in FABMRE
prepayments, deposits me RH MK
and other receivables HENEREE
— normal® B = 4,845 - - - 4,845
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 315,211 - - - 315,211
320,056 - - 126,940 446,996
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2019412 A31H

37.

202

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

37. UHKEBREERERBE (&)

FERE(E)
RAEBERFRY DR E)

As at 31 December 2018 R2018F12H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 5
FEER 2HEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£-8 F/ E=R @A % @
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAET FET TET TEL TAET
Trade receivables* B 5 RN = L 2 173,660 173,660
Financial assets included in ~ EF AT A -
prepayments, deposits me R H MK
and other receivables HEMERMEE
— normal® e 4,752 - - - 4,752
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 328,684 - - — 328,684
333,436 it 7 173,660 507,096
% For trade receivables to which the Group applies the i A BERAGREENE SRR

simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 19.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry segment. As at the end of the reporting period,
the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as
16% (2018: 20%) and 38% (2018: 38%) of the Group’s
total trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest
debtor and the five largest debtors from continuing
operations, respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate
funds to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer terms. In the management of liquidity risk, the
Group has been maintaining a cash pooling system where
excess liquid is centralised internally through inter-group
accounts. Depending on the specific requirements of each
funding agreement, funding for the Group’s operating
companies may be sourced directly from the Group’s
bankers or indirectly through the Company.

Ay

MR ASEEREECRABEEERITNE
ZHETRS FUNESEER - 285
RRERDERE /HFH - EBEEERT
ERMETE - RIEHER - A5BE—
EHNEEESTRRK 25l AB16% (2018
% 1 20% ) }38% (20184 : 38% ) * Ji f&
WAEBERBELCENRREBEARAKX
B ARKE -

EHAEEREESEURENEER
B — P E2EE RBAENKER
B 5E10H% 55 ©

AEENEERBRBETREES WA E
HERALRERHARDESER - REER
BETER AEE-—EEFRSHBER
B BEBEAREREEP XA TS
PEMGHNRDEE BITEEHE
MEARBERME AKENLEAFA
HEAASEENAERRTHAEEBEBAR
RABMEBEER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

TREINBEMERAEESRAE
RESORMBENKOIHBER

The following tables show the maturity profile of the
Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments.

204

On demand/
within Less than Within
3 months 1 year 2 to 5 years Total
BER/
3EA R DPME 2E5F X &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FAT TAT
2019 20194
Trade and bills payables & 5 {0 E &
e R & 73,567 - - 73,567
Financial liabilities At ARERT R K
included in accruals Hh & < SR IE
and other payables MEBMAaE 35,149 - - 35,149
Interest-bearing bank FTERITER
borrowings 26,154 - - 26,154
Lease liabilities HEARE 3,866 11,636 13,837 29,339
138,736 11,636 13,837 164,209
2018 20184
Trade and bills payables & 5 & U8 &
ANE 91,240 = 7 91,240
Financial liabilities At ARERT I K
included in accruals H i & < 5K I8
and other payables meraE 33,877 — — 33,877
Interest-bearing bank FFEIRITER
borrowings 131,003 8,782 18,074 157,859
256,120 8,782 18,074 282,976

Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholder’s value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to the
shareholder, return capital to shareholder or issue new
shares. The Group is required to comply with certain
externally imposed capital requirements as set out in
certain banking facility letters. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
the ratio of interest-bearing bank borrowings to total
shareholders’ equity. Total shareholders’ equity comprises
all components of equity attributable to owners of the
parent. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

Interest-bearing bank borrowings & SR 1TE K

Total equity attributable to owners
of the parent

BEARBEL X

Gearing ratio

A

AEBEREANBEEARRREARE
BREFELSE LYHFREEALEIN
NREXBLEERSRREE-

AEEEBHEALE UREBEEMR
NGB REEEEN AR HE
THE REFRIABREALALERE T&EH
AREeHEINTRENRE MRE
REBARLBITHRGD - ANEBEEST
& TIRITRVEE AT E A E T 5N 38 5 A0
BB A E - & E2019F &2018F 128
SIHLEFEYEWEEBEANERZE K
RRBBEELHEE o

AEBEFERERNAGBL X (B RRITE
RE B RESEFNLR)EREN - I
REDABBRERARES ARGERE
MEFEE AEENERERBELRR
BLEREFNREEKFE RBBEHART
BEARBELERMT :

BRBEE ANELRERR

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THEIT
26,154 156,220
549,735 536,508
4.8% 29.1%
—NFFH REBEBRERAR QT 205



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR R M (&)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

AR AR R E B R B A R B

Information about the statement of financial position of the

206

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: wm
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mME  BEEREE 1,765 o7y
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RARMIKE 78,563 78,563
Total non-current assets EREEERT 80,328 78,563
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and deposits ERRERES 356 380
Due from subsidiaries NG 448,328 436,217
Tax recoverable A Ug 8] F =X 150 —
Cash and cash equivalents HehREEED 1,816 600
Total current assets MEBEEBEE 450,650 437,197
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Accruals & 5T 3R 2,969 1,529
Lease liabilities HEERE 1,796 —
Tax payable JE 1~ B 18 - 18
Total current liabilities nBaEAR 4,765 1,547
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 445,885 435,650
Net assets BEFE 526,213 514,213
EQUITY Ea
Share capital A% 76,394 76,207
Reserves (note) 4 (M aE) 449,819 438,006
Total equity e R 526,213 514,213
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

M mRME(E)

31 December 2019

g

A

RABEEBEZERERAR

201912 A31H
Note: B 7 -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AAafEBEOBERT :
Share Share
premium  Contributed option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
% 17 % B Bk MABH BERERE & 8 % A &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THAL TAET THEL FTHET
Balance at 1 January 2018 ®2018F1 18 K & # e 123,578 o 35,870 159,448
Total comprehensive income for ~ FE 2 KA A%
the year i = > 37,990 37,990
Issue of shares under initial public 1R 1FE R AR &
offering & in 267,165 = = - 267,165
Share issue expenses BOBITHEY (17,001) = = = (17,001)
Dividends ’RE 7 o &= (18,099) (18,093)
Equity-settled share option IR B B
arrangement T = 7,405 o 7,405
Issue of shares upon exercise of  17{# f BRAEE 2170
share options 4147 (3,055) = 1,092
Transfer of share option reserve  RINEEARE BB = 8
upon forfeiture of share options MR #ERE & = (115) 115 -
At 31 December 2018 and 2018512318 &
at 1 January 2019 201941 A1A 254,311 4,235 55,882 438,006
Total comprehensive income FEXRABALESE
for the year - - 71,759 71,759
Dividends B e - - (63,311) (63,311)
Equity-settled share option PARR 1 45 5 B A
arrangement - 2,443 - 2,443
Issue of shares upon exercise of  77{F FE IR IEE 21T {0
share options 3,440 (2,518) - 922
Transfer of share option reserve  SRIBERRIER ER T8
upon forfeiture of share options % #Ef% & - (80) 80 -
At 31 December 2019 2019124318 257,751 4,080 64,410 449,819
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31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

208

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period (i.e. 31
December 2019) and up to the date of this financial
statements, the Company purchased 10,918,000 of its
Shares on the Stock Exchange for a total cash
consideration of HK$12,919,000. The purchased Shares
were cancelled and the total amount paid for the
purchase of Shares has been charged to retained profits
of the Company.

The comparative statement of profit or loss has been re-
presented as if the operation discontinued during the
current year had been discontinued at the beginning of
the comparative period (note 11).

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial
statements, the Group adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 January
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under
this approach, the comparative amounts in the financial
statements were not restated and continued to be
reported under the requirements of the previous standard,
HKAS 17, and related interpretations.

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 5 March 2020.
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R & 5 [ oK (12019512 A31H) & &
HEAUBHRERBY  AAaUBEE&NK
{8 #8%612,919,0007% 7T 41 B8 E R B X T Y
10,918,0008% i 15 © PTUR B A%t B 584 -
MBREBRDIASNHBRESBEETARA
Al ERE & o

HRIEFZREES  MOREKTFELIE
BB AR IEE R B R BCHA A0 4%k (P 5
11) o
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Five Year Financial Summary

LFEMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- AEBRBERATBRFENEEAREE -
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial BE&FEBREZHE (HHADTIBLER
years, as extracted from the published audited financial BIBBEICRKEE E5 E#H D HE) &H 50
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out | °

below.

Year ended 31 December
BZ12AMBLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019% 20184 20174 2016%F 2015%F
(HK$’000) (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000)
(Feml (T#x) (F#x) (F#x) (FET)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS #HEREX%

REVENUE A 784,998 831,072 728,159 651,485 645,147
Cost of sales 35 & P A (475,166) (516,894) (459,648) (390,523) (407,372)
Gross profit EF 309,832 314,178 268,511 260,962 237,775
Other income and gains, net  HEM M A Rz 558 5,127 2,968 3,997 16,352 15,981
Selling and distribution HERDHERAX

expenses (115,863) (117,147) (108,913) (106,020) (95,017)
Administrative expenses THAX (79,204) (91,770) (101,276) (79,037) (82,671)
Other expenses, net H A % 558 (5,104) (11,068) (1,770) (11,689) (9,903)
Finance costs BMEKA (3,509) (4,513) (3,184) (3,099) (3,869)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM  HEEE EBBRHA

CONTINUING OPERATIONS %7 111,279 92,648 57,365 77,469 62,296
Income tax expense FTEHAX (21,466) (19,408) (14,688) (16,733) (13,346)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM REREXBMNER

CONTINUING OPERATIONS & Al 89,813 73,240 42,677 60,736 48,950
DISCONTINUED BRIEREXK

OPERATIONS
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR R IEEEEKER

FROM DISCONTINUED (B#8), &7

OPERATIONS (12,523) 4,240 5,697 4,967 (9,494)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 77,290 77,480 48,374 65,703 39,456
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Five Year Financial Summary (continued)

LEMBRE(E)

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Profit for the year from
continuing operations
(Loss)/profit for the year
from discontinued
operations

Profit for the year

Non-controlling interests
Loss for the year from
continuing operations
Profit/(loss) for the year
from discontinued
operations

Profit/(loss) for the year

2019
20194
(HK$’000)
(F#7x)
AT AT
ISE/NETR PN
FRE A 89,813
ERN(ER),/
S ) (14,335)
FRE A 75,478
JE o B =5
NE R -
FERRA,
(E518) 1,812
FRHRAM
(E5#8) 1,812
77,290
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Year ended 31 December

B E12A31BLEE
2018 2017 2016
20184 20174 20164
(HK$'000)  (HK$000)  (HK$000)
(FEmT) (F#&mx) (F#&x)
73,240 42,677 61,141
2 544 3,418 3,805
75,784 46,095 64,946
— — (405)
1,696 2,279 1,162
1,696 2279 757
77,480 48,374 65,703

2015

20154

(HK$’000)

(F#&T)

49,427

(8,180)

41,247

(477)

(1,314)

(1,791)

39,456



Five Year Financial Summary (continued)

LEMBRE(E)

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of
the parent

Non-controlling interests

FRBEE
mEBEE
mBEE
MBEEFE
FRBEE
BEFE

B
(SYNEIEZ-WN
i

ESEl g Fan

2019
20194
(HK$°000)
(F®x)

165,632
572,871
169,764
403,107

19,004
549,735

549,735

549,735

As at 31 December

M12831A8

2018 2017
20184 20174
(HK$'000)  (HK$'000)
(F&m) (FER)
142,127 147,473
719,414 433,988
284,226 291,960
435,188 142,028
22,988 57,441
554,327 232,060
536,508 214,169
17,819 17,891
554,327 232,060

2016
20164F
(HK$’000)
(F&mx)

161,451
439,913
245,784
194,129

48,282
297,298

279,253
18,045

297,298

2015
20154
(HK$’000)
(FA&T)

181,111
383,567
235,877
147,690

64,697
264,104

247,366
16,738

264,104
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Five Year Financial Summary (continued)

LEPHHREE)

As at and for the year ended 31 December
M12A3MEREE12A31BLFE

2019
20194
Profitability ratios BERgE D=
Return on equity™ 25 B FR O 13.7%
Return on assets® & E B ;@ 10.5%
Liquidity ratios REBESLE
Current ratio® 7t &)t O 3.4
Quick ratio® RB) L @ 2.6
Capital adequacy ratios ¥ A& ZFELE=
Gearing ratio® BEEBELXRO 4.8%
Net cash/(debt) to equity Be  (BE)F
ratio® RH B 23 L RO 52.6%
Notes:

(1)

212

Return on equity represents profit for the year attributable to
owners of the parent as a percentage of equity attributable to
owners of the parent as of the end of the same year.

Return on assets represents profit for the year as a percentage
of total assets as of the end of the same period.

Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities
as of the end of the year.

Quick ratio equals current assets less inventories divided by
current liabilities as of the end of the year.

Gearing ratio equals total debt divided by equity attributable to
owners of the parent. Total debt represents interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Net debt to equity ratio equals net debt divided by equity
attributable to owners of the parent at the end of the year. Net
debt represents interest-bearing bank borrowings, less cash and
cash equivalents.
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2018 2017 2016 2015
20184 20174 20164 20154
14.1% 21.5% 23.3% 16.7%

9.0% 8.3% 11.1% 7.0%

2.5 1.5 1.8 1.6

1.8 0.8 1.2 0.9
29.1% 89.4% 62.3% 70.7%
321%  (68.1)%  (45.00%  (46.5)%
B 5E -

1

BabRESARERAREFEENRA
FREBARFERAREREN AL °

BENREFRENERABREERENS
Carlaglt

MBULERERFRORBDEERARD &

f&

BB ERERFRNRBDEERTER A
mBEE -

BERBUXASREBRBRUTRRAE
BARMGEER B EBREFTBRRITER

BEFEESLIHEENFRNELFEKE
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